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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.(Consolidated)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS INTERNATIONAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws of the country by
the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2022 to 3 I st December 2022. Financial Statements of
AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius
International Ltd for the period I st April2022 to 3l st March 2023. The holding company Ajanta
Pharma Limited (lndia) follows the period I st April 2022 to 3lst March 2023. In order ro
consolidate the accounts of Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Ltd(Consolidated)with that of the holding
company, we have been appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD.(Consolidated) for the period lst April
2022 to 3lst March 2023 under the companies Act in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (CONSOLIDATED) ('1he Company") (hereinafter referred to
as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
refened to as "the Group"), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3lst March
2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary ofthe significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Consolidated financial statements have been

prepared solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

ln our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2023, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial
stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with

theCode of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under

the prov isions of the Companies Act,20l3 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our

t *

other ethical responsibilities in accordance u'ith these requireme n d the Code of Ethics. We
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believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context ofour audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit'

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with

M. NO.
107571

by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('1he Act") with respect to the preparation ofthese Consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that zre reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true md fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatified as on 3 I st March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position:

ii. The Company has not entered into any long+erm contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transfening amounts, required to be transferred, to the [nvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's :112617W

pnil Modi
Parlner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
Date:24th April2023

UDIN No 23 10757{BGTKDtrti26'l
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
ofthe Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated)('the Company") as of 3l March 2023 in conjunction with
our audit ofthe Consolidatedfinancial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design.

implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditors' Responsibilify
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Cuidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of lntemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgnrent, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or enor.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated hnancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the ffansactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations ol internal financial controls over financial reporting.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovenide of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating eflectively as at 3l March 2023, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute olChartered Accountants of India.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Charlered Accountants
Firm's regi : ll26l7W

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
Date: 24th April2023

UDIN No.: 231075748GTKDU8264

u. r{o.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidatcd Balance Shect
qs ql 3l Motch 2023

(Currcncy: MtJR)

Assets

Non-current rssets

Property, plant ard equipment
Asset held for sale

Right to use assets

Financial assets

Investments

Other financial assets
'l'otal non-currcnt assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade reccivables

Cash ard cash equivalents

Other current assets
'lotal currcnt assets

'l otal assets

Equity And Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other Equity

J I }larch 202J

l\,rAt,. Rs

3l March 2022
MAU. RsNotc

8

9

8

2,500,972

5.000.000

187,983

4',19.16't

36.258.1t3

(0)

1.157,322

l0
t0

8.368. t22 37.4 t5.435

ll

l2
l3
l.l

361.276.'708 559.600.987

225.359,'162

t 35,454,023

70.604

297.315.048

73.507,66'1

595,281

722.161 .09'l 93t.0t8.983

730,529,219 968,1J.1,418

t5

t6
61.379.100

528.2 t4.311

6t.379.100

569.35 t.634

589.593.413 630.730.734

Liabilities
Non current liabilitics

Lerc liahilitv t'l 393.'t 43

Currcnt liabilitics
Trade payables

Other current liabilities

l8
l9

t24.182.157

15,759.907

252.694.224

85.009.460

Total currcnt liabilitics 140.542.064 33'7 703.684

'l'otal equity and liabilities

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notcs referred to above form an integral part ofthc consolidated financial stalemenls

As per our report ofcven date attached

730,529,219 96E,{3t.{18

I or and on bchalf of Board of Directors

of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) t,imited

k illu dar
l) ctor

In terms ofour r€port attachcd

t'or G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(ICAI FRN

Swapnil Modi

Paflner

Mumbai,24 Apr,2023

rt )ro.
lgurl
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Mumbai, 24 Apr,2023
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
lbr the year ended 3l March 202j

(Currcncl: N4[1R)

Income

Revenue fiom operalions

Other income

Total income

ExpcDsca

Cost of malerials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of fi nished goodVwork-in-progresystock-in-trade

Employee benefi ts expenses

Financ.e costs

Depreciation and anonisation expens€

Other expenses

Total crpen$cs

Profit bcfore tax

Ta,r expense

Current 1a,\

Deffered ta\

Profil for thc year

Earning pcr cquit) share (Basic & Diluted) (Face ralue Ilt'Rl(10/-)

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notes refened to above form an integBl part ofthe consolidaled financial statements

As per our report ofeven date attached

(ICAI FRN: ll

Sw{pnilNlodi
Partnor

\lumbai, 2l Apr,202l

t'Dl\ : 2Jl0757ltlcTKDt li26.l

\ote
ll |llarch 202.1

It,\ t . Rs

3l iu|rch 2022

MAU. Rs

20

2t
646,072,280

5.829.082

550,620,646

(5,2 t0.016)

65t,90t,362 545,4t0,6t0

22

23

24

25

26

21

28

36,326.499

645,298.544

(396,322,032)

68,818.853

172.836

4,370.905

r39.lt0 732

69s,666,6.19 191,116,331

301.302,681

198,324,219

37.740.886

t4.210
1.339.r88

156,945.345

(43,765,287)

(2,621.e65)

.17,63,t,293

2.144. I l9

(ll, r l?,12 t) .15..190.t 7-l

30 (6?.02) 14.1 I

For and on bchalf of Board of Directors

of Ajanta Pharma (Ilauritius) Limited

uzumdar
Dircotor

tnil

llumbai, 2l Apr.202J

r{No.
ro,',1 MAURITIUS

o.

MA

t-

ln terms ofour rcport attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountants



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 3l M.trch 2023

(Currcncl: MUR)

A. Cash flow from oper.ting.ctiviti.s
Profit before tax
Adjustrnent for

Depreciation and amonisation expense
Finance costs

3l Nlsrch 2021

MAU, RS

(43.765.287)

Jl luarch 2022

MAU, RS

1,339, r 88

t4.270

47.634.293

4,370,905

t72.836
Unrealiscd foreiqn exchan ge difference

Oper.ting..sh flow b.fore working..pit.l chrngcs
Changes in working capital

Decre6sg / (increasc) in tradc and other receivables
Decrease / (increase) in other non currenl assels

Decrease / (increase) in other cu[ent assets

Decreasc / (increase) in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in other cunent liabilities

(.l2,Jl1,t29) 52,r78,01J

7t,955,286
678.155

524,677

198.324.219
(69.249.ss4',)

(24r,926,008)

20,000
t06,270,8 t 2

(37 3,t02,017 )
5.517.917

Increase / (decrease) in other long term provisions
Inctease / (decrease) rn shon term provrsrons

lncrease / (decrease) in trade payables

Cash gcn.rrted from operrtions
Net income tax Daid

(127.912.067)

I1,90E,9.17

2.627.965

252_694.224
(r98,287,018)

(2,144. t t9)
Net cash generated from operating ,clitities

B. Crsh now from inv.sting.ctiviti.s
Capilal expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capita

Capitalexpenditure on right lo use asset

Purchase of non-currcnl investmcnts

Purchasc of non-currcnl investments

l{,5J(,.91.1 (200.{Jr,l57)

(3 r3,686)
(58t,974)

(2,s72.532)

201.960.158

Net cash used in investing activiti.s

Cesh flow from finencing.ctivities
Repaymcnt oflease liability (including interest lhereon)

Interest paid

Dividend paid

393.743
(t4,270)

(2,469,066)
(r72.836)

27 ,029,970 r99,J87,626

('

Nct crsh uscd in linancing activities

Nat incraasa / (dacraasc) in crsh rnd cash equivrl.nls

Cash and cash equivalents as at thc beBinning ofthe ycar

Cash and cash equivalcnls as at the end ofthc year

Figures in brackels indicates outflow.
Not. :

l. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under'lndirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS - 7)

"Statement of Cash Flow" under Section l13 of $e Companies Act 2013.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, cu(cnt accounts and deposils with bank. Cash equivalents are sholn-krm balances (with an original

maturity of tfuce monlhs or less from the date of acquisition).

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an intcgralpart ofthe consolidated financial statements

As per our report ofevcn dale attached

l'or and on hchalf of Boerd of Directors of
anla Pharm, (\laurilius) Linrilcd

(ICAI I'RN

319,113

61,9{6J56

71.507,66s

1J5,45,1,021

(2,641,902)

(J,6E5,112)

71.t93.098
73,507,665

apn odi
Partner
lUumbri,2{ Apr,2023
UDIN : 231075748G'l KDU8264

)A
Di

mdar
tector

M. r{o.
iOTs/ l MAURITIUS

*

oa t-

tlA

In terms ofour r€port rllachcd
t'or G. R. Ilodi & Co.
Chartercd Accounlants

\lumhri,2.l Apr.202J



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
lor the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: MUR)

A. Equi.y Shrr. Crpirrl MUR

Brhnce rs {t
0l .\pril2022

Brlrnce xs ar.]l
llrrch 2(l2J

Subscribed & Paid up:

100,000,000
6 t.179, t00
6t.379.t00

100,000,000 00
6 t.179.100 00
61.179.100 00

100,000,000
6t.379,100
61,179,t00

Chrng€s ir
Equily
Shrrc

Capitsl du€
lo prior
period

Rcatat.d
brhnc. rt rhc Chrng.s in

beginning oftbe equity rhrre
currcnt crpitrl durirg
rcporting the ycrr

p.riod

B. Other E0uitr
(lrpitrl

R.d.mplion
shrrr llased Rrtainrd Foreign

Curr.ncy
()ther il.m\ of

olher compr.hcrsire (-ontrolling
lbtal l]quily

As r. I April202I
Profit for fie period

Olher comprehensive income

380.192.756 52J,E6t,460
.15,.190,r?.r

s23,t61,460
t5,,r90,1 7,1

Tolal comprehensive income
Transfer to General rcserve
Dividend Paid
Ar 3l M.Eh 2022

{5.{90.t 7{ .15,J90,17{ 1S,.t90.17{

lli0. t92-756 I tt9, | 5E,87E 569.JSl.6J.r s69.15!.61{
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

(41.137,t21) (ll,l.]7,J21) ({l,r l7.J2 t )

Total comprehensive income
Dividend Paid

(4 r,137,32 t) (4t,tJ7.32 t ) ({r,rJ7.l2l )

,\l Jl Urrch 202J 360,192,756 r{8.021.ss6--52E.2t.t.31.t--52E,214,3t.1

Sec rccomnanying nolcs forming prrt of thc linrncirl slrt.menls

Io t.rms ofour r.pori rltrchcd
For G. R. Modi & Co.

(ICAIFRN:1126

t M. No
I o7s71

l'or and on behrlfof Board of Dircctors of
Ajrnta Phrrmr (Uauririus) t-imired

\,o-

,,|A

Mumbei,2,l Apr,2023
UDIN : 23107574BGTKDU8264

I43,668,704
45,490,t 74

MAURITIUS



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2023

l CorporatcInformation

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its
registered office is located at First Floor, Garage Hi-Tcch Building, Eau Partage, Pamplemousses
Mauritius, l2l0ll. The Consolidated Financial statement ('CFS") comprises the Company and its
subsidiary (referred to collectively as lhe "Group").

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of spcciality phannaceutical
finished dosages.

The Consolidated Financial Stalements for the year ended 3l March 2023 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 24 April 2023.

2. Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statcments have bcen prcpared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition & mcasurcment principlcs laid down in Indian Accounling Standards
(hereinaflcr rcfcrred to as thc 'lnd AS') read with Rulc 4 of the Companics (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevanl provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost

basis, except otherwise stated.

3. llasis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (lnt'l) t,td. The financial statements of thc
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses afler eliminating
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are

presented to the extent possible, in the same manncr as thc Group's independent financial
statements. The statcment of profit and Ioss and each componenl ofother comprehensive income are

attribulcd to the equity holdcrs ofthe Company.

'fhese consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been

consolidated using uniform accounting policies for likc transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to lhe financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with lhe Group's accounling policies. 'Ihe financial
statemcnts of the subsidiarics used in consolidation are drawn up to the samc reporting datc as that
ofthe Company i.e., year ended 3l March 2023.

4. Functional and Prescntation Currcncv:

Functional Cunency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR).

5. Rounding of Amounts

AII amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

crores.

M. llo.
tolf,,a

MAURITIU$
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6

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidatcd Financial Statcments as on 3l March 2023

Current / non-current classification:

'l'he asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on cunent/non-current
classification.

An asset is current whcn it is:
. Expected to be realiscd or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for lhe purpose oftrading, or
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. Cash or cash equivalent unless reslricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

leasl twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Cunent.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or
. Due to be senled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional righl to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months

afler the repo(ing period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option ofthe counter?arty, result
in its settlemcnl by the issue of equity instrumenls do not affect ils classification.
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Currcnt.

Operating Cyclc
An opcrating cycle is the time betwccn the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nalure ofproducts / activities ofthe group and thc normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, thc group has determined its opcrating cycle
as l2 months for lhe purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

7. Significant Accounting Policics

7.1 Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on the straighlline method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Uscful Lifc
Leasehold Improvcmcnt 20 years

Fumiture, f-ixtures & Fittings 2 to 6 years

Office Equipments 2 to 4 years

Planl & Machinerv 5 to 20 years

Motor Vehicles 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives arc reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, a egetr end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is grcaler t&an its estimated lecoverable

t\

M. NO
10r571

i i

Property, plant and equipment are statcd at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. Subsequent cosls are included
in the assels carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is

probable that fulure economic bencfits associated wilh the item will flow to the company and the
cost ofthe item can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statements as on 3l March 2023

amount, il is written down immediately to its rccoverablc amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are delermined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement ofprofiI or loss.

7.2 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofonc entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics ofthe financial asset.

I n itial rccognition and nrcasuremcnt

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair valuc through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
ofthe financial asset.

Subscq uent mcasu re me nt

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
o Financial assets at fair valuc (FVTPL / FVTOCI)
. Financial assets at amortised cost
When assets are measured al fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

F'inancial assets are measurcd al amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contraclual terms of the asset

give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interesl. Such

financial assets are subsequently measurcd at amortiscd cost using lhe effective intercst rate (EIR)
method less impairmcnt, if any. The losscs arising from impairment are recognised in the Statcment
olprofit and loss.

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, when assct is held within a business model, whosc objective is to hold assets for both
collccting conlractual cash flows and sclling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized
in thc other comprehcnsive incomc.

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

MAUR Tlu9
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Financial Assets mcasured at Fair Valuc through Othcr Comprchensive Incomc ('FVTOCI')

Financial Assets mcasured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ('FVTPL")
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Investmenl in Equity Instruments

Equity inslruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changcs on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in lhe other comprehensive income. 'Ihere is no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

I nvcstmcnt in l)cbt Instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cosl or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does

not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortizcd cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the l-Vl'Pl- category are measured at fair value with all changes
rccognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial assct is primarily derecognised when the rights lo receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or thc Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asscts

ln accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments
and tradc receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

'l'he Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

I nitial rccognition and measuremcnt

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, bonowings and
payables, net ofdirectly attributable fansaction costs.

F'inancial liabilities include tradc and other payables, Ioans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instrumenls.

Subsequent measuremcnt

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognilion as at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Elfective lnterest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recogniscd in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amorlisation process. Amortised cost is calculaled
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part ofthe EIR. the EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Dcrccognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is dcrecognised when the obligalion under the liability is disqharged.or cancelled

or expircs. When an existing financial liability is replaced by -another fror/$,}anie-@er on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantii$/modified,\ch an
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2023

exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of Profit and Loss.

DerivatiYc Financial I nstrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward cunency conlracls lo mitigale its
foreign cunency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

7,3 lnventorics

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower ofcost (on moving weighted average basis)
and net realisable value, cost of which includes duties and laxes. Cost of imported raw materials and
packing materials lying in bonded warehouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished
products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cosl and net realisable
value. Cost is anived on wcighted average basis.

The cost of Inventories has becn computcd to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion,
appropriate share of fixed production overhcads based on normal operating capacity and other
related cost incuned in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is thc eslimated selling price in thc ordinary course of buiness, less the
estimated costs ofcompletion and selling expenses necessary to make the salc.

Slow and non-moving matcrial, products nearing expiry, dcfective inventory are fully provided for
and valued at net realisable value.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incuned up to the datc of balance sheet.

Materials and olher items held for use in produclion of inventories are nol written down, if the
finished products in which they will be used are expccted to be sold at or above cost.

7.4 Cash and Cash Equivalcnts

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consisl of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an

integral part ofthe group's cash management.

7.5 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions ofa non-cash nature, any defenals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash

receipts or payments and item ol income or expcnses associated wilh investing or financing cash

flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activitics ofthe Group are segregated.

7,6 Forcign Currcncy Transactions

Revenue 'l'ransactions denominalcd in foreign cunencies are normally recorded at thc exchange rale

t t
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Monctary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange

rate prevailing on the balancc sheet dale. Non-monetary foreign currency items are canied at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is

rccognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

7.7 RcvcnueRccognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS I l5 (applicable from I April 2018)

Under Ind AS ll5, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was

satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were

transfened to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodolory which is as

follows:

Step I : Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identiry the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity salisfies a performance obligation

Sale ofGoods

The group applied Ind AS I l5 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on the lransaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is

specified in a contract with cuslomer. Revenue are net of estimated retums and taxes collected from
customers,

Revenue from sale of goods is rccognized at point in time when control is transfened to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transfened upon

the shipmenl ofthe goods to the cuslomer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The transaction pricc is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agrced
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is

highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Sales retum is variable considcration that is rccognised and recorded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduclion from revenue. The methodolory
and assumplions used to estimate retums are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Interest income

Interest income is rccognised wilh relerence to the Effeclive lnterest Rate ti.lethod
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Notes to thc Consolidated Financial Statements as on 3l March 2023

Dividend from investment is rccognised as revenue when right to receive is esrablished

Income from Lrport Benefrls and Other Incentives

lixport benefits available under prevalenl schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exportcd and / or services are rendercd only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will bc complied with, and thc amounts will be received.

7.8 Rmployce Bcnefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelvc months rendering service are classified as
short{erm employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compcnsated absences,
performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia arc recognised during the
period in which the employce renders related service.

(D Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered serviccs entitling them to such benefits.

The Croup pays Social Security Cost as per local regulalions. The Group has no further
payment obligalions once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

For employees who are nol covered by a pension plan, the net present value of scverance
allowances payable under the Employment Righls Act 2008 is provided for. 1'he obligations
arising under this item are not funded.

(iD Share-basedcompensation
'l'he Group has no sharc-bascd compensation plan

1.9 Borrowing Costs

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thal
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

occur. Bonowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

bonowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes cxchange differences to the extent regardcd as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaclion cosls are charged to statement of profit and loss as

financial expenses ovcr the lerm ofborrowing.

7.10 l,case

The Group's Iease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses

whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys lhe right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration. To assess whether a confact convcys the right 10 control the use of an

identified asset, the group assesses whether: (l) lhe contract involves the use ofan identified assct

(2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period

ofthe lease and (3) the group has the right to direct the usc ofthe asset.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts as on 3l March 2023

At the dale of commenccment of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a

corresponding lease liability for all lease anangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with

a tcrm of twelvc months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and

low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line

basis over the term oflhe lease.

Certain lcase anangements include the options to extend or terninate the lease before the end ofthe
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be excrcised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the

lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 'l'hey are subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the

shorter ofthe lease term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Right ofuse assets are evaluated for
rccoverability whcnever cvenls or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts

may not be recovcrable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. thc

higher of the fair value lcss cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

basis unless the asset does not gencrate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverablc amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

l'he lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Leasc

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if thc
Company changes its assessment ifwhether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever lhe
terms of thc lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Transition
llffective I April, 2019, the goup adopted Ind AS I l6 "Lcases" and applied the standard to all lease
conhacts existing on I April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted aI the
generally accepted interesl rate and the right ofuse asset at its carrying amount as ifthe standard had
becn applied since the commencement date oi the lcase, but discounled at the gcnerally accepted
interest rate at lhe date of initial application. comparatives as at and for the year ended March 3l ,
2019 havc not becn relrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 3 l, 2019.

on transition, the adoption of the new slandard resultgd, in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
MUR 6,593,744 and a lease liability of MUR 6,593,744. The crlmUative effect of applying rhe
standard, amounting to MUR Nil was debited to reteined eamings, ne1 ol taxes. The effcct of this
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I16 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activilies and an increase in cash
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical expedienls elected on initial application:

a. Applied a singlc discount ratc to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar cconomic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize righrof-use assets and liabilities for leases with less
than l2 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial dircct costs from the measurcment of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical cxpedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS l16 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

'fhe interest rale applied to lcase liabilities as at I April,20l9 is 7%.

7.ll Earnings Per Sharc

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable Io the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the wcighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per cquity sharc and also the weighted average number of equiry shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issucd at

fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are dcemed convcrted as of the beginning of the period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined indepcndently for each

pcriod presented.

7.12 lncomc Taxcs

Income tax expense comprises current and defened income tax.

lncome ta\ expense is recognized in net profit in the statement ofprofit and loss except to the extent

that it relates to ilems recognizcd directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in olher
comprehensive income. Current income ta,\ for currenl and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates

and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Defened income la,y assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
betwecn the ta,x bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Defened tax assets are revicwed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent lhat it is no

longer probable thal the related tax benefit will bc realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nct amount is reported in the balance

sheet, if there is a cunently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are mcasured using respective Country's tax mtes and tax

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected Io
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Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statcments as on 31 March 2023

apply to taxable income in thc years in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled. The effect ofchanges in tax rales on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is

recognized as income or expense in the period lhat includes the enactment or the substantive

enactment date. A defened income tax asset is recognized 10 the extent that it is probable that futurc

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a nct

basis, or to rcalize lhe asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is
expected that the eamings ofthe subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

7.13 Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholdcrs is recogniscd as a liability in the period in which
the dividends arc approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on
approval by Board ofDireclors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

7.11 l'rovisions, Contingcnt Liabilities, Contingcnt Asscts and Commitments

G cn€ra I

Provisions (legal and constructive) are rccognised when the Group has a prescnt obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a pasl event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation, in respcct of which a reliablc estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefils and compensated absences) are not discounted to ils
present value and are determincd based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These arc reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the curent
best estimates.

lfthere is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursemenl is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is prcsenled in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

Ifthe effect ofthe time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increasc in the provision due to the passage oftimc is recognised as a finance cosl.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
. A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation arising from pasl events, when no reliable estimates is possible;
o A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for

MAURITIUS
a.
4

*

(n

t-

MA

M. NO.
,07t,t

t

completion of asscls and Non-cancellable operaling lease.

I

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

7.15 Fair yalue mcasurcment

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date in accordance with Ind AS I13.

Financials Statemenls havc bccn prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:
o Dcrivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measurcd at fair values as pcr Net Asset Value (NAV).
. llmployee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as pcr Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price that would be received lo sell an assct or settle a liability in an ordinary
transaction behryeen market participants at the mcasurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is nreasured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic bencfis by using the asset in its highest and besl use or by selling it to another

market panicipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

1'he Group uses valuation tcchniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or discloscd in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value mcasurement as a whole:

o Levcl I Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant lo the fair

valuc measurement is unobservablc.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuning basis, the

Group determines whether transfcrs have occuned between levels in thc hicrarchy by rc-asscssing

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremenl as a

Asset Rctirement Obligation
Assel rctirement obligations (ARo) are provided for lhose operating lcase arrangements where the
Company has a binding obligation at the cnd of the lease period ro restore the leased premises in a
condition similar to inception of lease. ARo are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax mte that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statemcnt as a finance cosl. 'l'he estimaled future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in thc discount ratc applied are
added to or deducted from the cosl ofthe assel.
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Ministry of Corporatc Affairs ("MCA") nolifics new slandard or amendments to the existing

standards. There is no such notification which would have becn applicable from I April2022.

1.17 Critical accounting judgements, cstimates and assumptions

'fhe preparation of the Group's financial statements rcquircs management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the rcported amounls of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the disclosure of conlingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material

adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assets or liabilities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease

At the inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether the anangement is or
contains a lease. At the inccption or on reassessment ofan arrangement that contains a lease,

the Group separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for lhe lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the

arrangemenls that such contracts are in the naturc ofoperating leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vcndors
The Group has entered into multiple element conlracts with vendors for supply ofgoods and
rendering ofservices. The consideralion paid isimay be determined independent ofthe value
of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are

accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounling policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Ilquipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Group has economic ownership in these assets. The Group bclieves that lhe cuffent
lreatment represents lhe substance ofthe arrangement.

(c) Detcrmination of functional currcncy
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency ofthe primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial
statements of cach entity are measured using that functional cunency. Ind AS 2l, "The
Effccts of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" prescribcs the factors to be considered for
the purpose of determination of functional cunency. Management uses its judgement to
determinc the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects ofthe
undcrlying transactions, cvcnts and conditions.

Property, Plant and equipment
Dctermination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which
components ofthe cost may be capitalized. Useful li
of useful lives/rates prcscribed by thc GAAPs of thc
nced to be madc, when thc Company assesses, whether an asset m
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(d)

t
which components oflhe cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.

Assumptions

I.'or lhe purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has dctermined classes of asscts and

liabilities on the basis of the naturc, chamcteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

7.16 Rccentaccountingpronounccmcnts
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to thc Consolidatcd Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

(h)

(D

(e) Intangible Assets
Intemal tcchnical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonablc.

(f) Recognition and measurement of defined bcnefit obligations
The obligation arising from thc delined bencfit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation
and vested future benefits and life expcctancy. The discount rate is determined with
referencc to market yields at thc end of the reporting period on the govcmment bonds. The
pcriod to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
cmployment benefi t obligations.

(e) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is rccognised for all the deductible tcmporary differences to the extent
that it is probable lhat taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
tcmporary differencc can be utiliscd. The managemcnl assumcs that taxable profits will be

available whilc recognising deferrcd tax assets.

Uncertainties exist wilh respect to the interpretation of complex ta,r regulations and the

amount and timing of future taxable incomc. Given the wide range of intemalional business

relationships and the long-Ierm nalure and complexity of existing contractual agrcements,

differences arising betwcen the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes

to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjuslments to tax incomc and expense already

recorded. The Group cstablishes provisions, based on rcasonable eslimates, for possible

consequences ofaudits by the tax authorities ofthe respectivc countrics in which it operates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous

tax audits and differing interpretalions of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the

responsiblc tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respcctive country.

Defened tax assets arc rccognised lbr all unused tax losscs to the extent that it is probablc

that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant

management judgemcnt is required to determine the amount of deferrcd tax assets that can

be recogniscd, based upon ttre likell' timing and the level of future taxable profits, future lax

planning strategies and recent business performances and dcvelopments.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measuremcnl of othcr provisions arc based on thc assessment of the

probability of an outflow of resources, and on past expericnce and circumstanccs known at

ih" b"luni. sheet dale. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary

from the figure includcd in other provisions.

Contingencies
Managernent judgemcnl is required lor estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any,

in resfect of iontingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict

the outcome ofpending matters with accuracy.

MAU

\
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Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and

defened tax assets and liabilitics. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of defened tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lcad to significant adjustment to thc amounts rcported in thc financial
statements.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to thc Consolidatcd Financial Statcments as on 3l March 2023

(j) Allowance for uncollcctcd accounts reccivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any inlercst and are stated at thcir normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowanccs lor estimated irrecovcrable amounts. lndividual trade receivables are

written off when management seems them not collectible. lmpairment is made on the

expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected

life olthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets arc based on assumption about risk of default
and expected loss rales. Judgcment in making these assumptions and selecting the inpuS to
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(k) Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty ofrecovery.

Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU')
excceds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. ln calculating the value in use, certain assumplions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growlh in
EBII'DA, long term groMh rales; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risk
involved.

(D
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Alanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Not.s to thc Consolidsled Finxncirl Strtam.nts (Conainucd)
as dt ll Mar.h 2023

8 Prop.rrr. Ptrnt.nd Equipndl
8 I Curr€nl Y.tr

cros alGk(cortor D.€med cosr) Accumular.d Depr..6tion/Amoni$rion
Ol Apnl l0:2 0l April 2022 ll Mdch l02l I I Md.h 2o2l 3l llr l0l2

6.495,235
89,914,848

7394,477
I9.417.170
9,0E,407

470.051

221.026

86,660

6,495,215
89,914,848

?,194.8?7

19.421,t10
4,287,886

470,052

227.026
86,660

4.125,521

4,482,656

6t,976.365
6,t@.91I

17,946,222

5,495,170

55,5r2

2,688

245,41I
46.926

lt0,4lt

4,485,344
62,221,776

6,182. ! 6l
ta.o7l,222
4,048.181

55.552

ProDGny, Pl.nl & Equipo.nl
L.a.hold Improv.m.nt

5,616
5,415

2.521,144

22t,150
81,145

2,194317

2,012,579

27,9t8,483
1,291,965

1.480,948

1,117,617

414,500
tf,!.715.589 2,518,1i5 36J5a.lt3
Il0,l4l,o57 132.715.589 04,284.485 1,172.990 16,258,1 rl tt,858.57r

()lhf lnlansihh Arrcls
581,974 ?.175.?18 6,141,115 187,981 (0)

,,t75.7ta (0)
.1,395,810

(IJ)

36,251t.1t3

E

I\ ITI'R

M. t{o.
i075,,a
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated l-inancial Statements (Continued)
os at 3l Match 2021

(Currency:MuR)

9 Assel held for s{le (Non currenl)
Asset held for salc

3l Yarch 202J

llAt. tu
.]l Yarch 2022

\I.\t . Rs

5,000,000

5.ot)o.r r0{1

l0 Olher Noo-Currenl Finsncirl Asset!
(Unsecured, Considered Good mless otherwise stated)

Security Deposits

ll Invadtorics

Finished goods

Slock-in-tmde

Clearing Charges ofUzbek Inventory

565.162

109,755,131

50,9s6,013

13,0t3,763
466,185,062

80,402.162

361.276.708 559.600.987

12 Trrde R€ceivrbles

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stacd

'Considcred good

l3 Crsh rnd crsh equivrlents
Cash on Iland

Balance with Banks - ln curenl accounts

14 Other Currc[t Asscts

Advances 1o Employees

Balance wrlh Slaturory/Govt Authorities 70,604

t09,t17
486.104

?0.60{ 595,281

3l lllar(h 202.]

IumberofSharcs
ll Mrrch 2021

MAU. Rs

3l ll,ir.h 2022

\rmbcr ofSharcs

Jl March 2022

MAtr. Rs

25,459

135,42E

135,J5.1,021

47,880

459.78813
't3,501,61

l5 Equity Sh.r. Crpitrl

Authorised :

Ordinary Shares of MUR I 00 each

Issued, Subscribed & P.id up :

Ordinary Shares ofMUR 100 each fully paid up

Number ofshares outslanding as at the beginning oflhe year

Number ofshares outstanding as at the end of the year

(c ) Ixtrils ofequity sh.reholders holdillg more thrn 57.
Nime ofShrreholder

.ll Mrrch 2023

Number ofSharcs
3l Nlerch 202.!

}IAT. R,l

ll Nhrch 2022 3l Marrh 2022

:iumb€r ofShrrcs llAtr. Rr

1,000,000 100,m0,m0

6I],791 6l,379, t00

1,000,000 t00 000,000

6t.379,100

(e) Rcroocilirlior ofnumberofequily shares oulstanding rl the b€ginning snd el the end oflhe ycar:

6r3,791 61,379.100

6l],791 61,379,t00 68,791 61,.t79,100

(b) Rights, prrfara[c.s atd rrstrktion! rttlahad to shar6
The company has issued only one class ofordinary shares with voting rights having a par value ofMURl00 per share.

During dl€ yea! ended 3 I March 2020, amount per share of divrdend recognrsed as d istributions to equity shareholdeB was M UR 7 I L28 per equity share (Pr. Yr MUR 5 I 4

In the event ofliquidation ofthe company, the holders ofequiry shares will be entitled to receive remaining asscts ofthe company. The dislribution will be in propo(ion to

ofoquity shares held by shareholders.

6ll,79l 61,179,100

3l M"rch 2023 3l Mrrch 2023

Numbcr ofSheres
ll Mrrch 2022 3l llrrch 2022

Number ofShrres 7o llolding
613,',79t 100 00 613,191

Nil

100 00

.,r p
a-r

l-
s-

o_
4-

M. NO.
t0rt4

(d) Sheres resen'ed for issue underoplions Nrl Nrl Nrl

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India

479,16t |,t51,322
179,161 1,151,322

225,359,762 297,315,M8
225,359,762 297,3t5,048

613,791

t,lA u

IdAURIIIUS



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notes to thc Consolidated Financial Stetements (Continued)
as dt 3l March 2023

(CurrencyrMUR)

16 OTTIER f,QT]ITY
Gencral Resen€
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add Transferred from Statemenl ofhofit & Loss

Exchrnge Fluclualion Resen c

Surplus in the St.tement ofProfit and Loss
Balance at the begrnning ofthe year
Profil for lhe year

Brlance rt tha yerr end

Totrl Other Equity

ll March 2023

UAt. Rr
.!l uarch 2022

\tAt . Rs

.r80,192,756

380,t92,756 380.t92.756

.t80,t92,756

143,668,704
45,490.17 4

189,1s8,878

569,351,634

252,694,224

252.694,224

85.009.460

8s,009,.160

528.2r{.3r3

l7 txlse lirbilily
Lease liabiliry t93,743

.19J.7{l

IIt T'R,.TI)}j PAI']\BT-ES t24,782,151

t24,782.151

l9 Other Current Liabililies
Olher Pa!'ablcs t5,759.901

15,759,m7

20 Rea.nue fmm Op€rrtions
Sale of Products

Finished Goods

Stock-rn-Tmde

2! Oth.r Incomc

Exchange Difference (Net)

Gain from Mutual Fund Investment

Miscellaneous Income

22 Cosr of Mrterirl Consumcd

Raw Material consumed

Opening Slock

Add : Purchases

Less: Closing Stock

Raw Material Consumed

Packing Material Consurned

opening stock

Add : Purchases

( r2.462.14s)

18.29t,227

(6,t24.198)
841,449

73,313

63,149,796

s82,922.484

201,412.40t
349.208,245

550.620.6.16

5.829.082 (5.2 to,ol6)

r9,828,124

t0,242,729

30,070,853

30,070,851

3,l9t,8ll
2.863,815

6,2ss,646

Lessr Closing Stock

Packing Malerial Consumed

23 Purchrse of Slock-in-T rrde (Rel.ted P.rty)
PurchNse of Slock-ir-Tr.de (Othcrs)

2a0.21a,129

21.023,952

526,515,217

l18,781,J27

M. NO.
l0rt'l MAURITIUS

tvlA

(I f'

=

I89,t 58,878
(4r,137,32t )
148,021,556

616,072,280

6.255,646

36,326,499



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Notcs ao the Consolidsted Finrncirl Ststements (Continued)
a: at 3l March 2023

(Currency: MUR)

24 Ch.rges itr lNentories of Finbhad Goods, Worl-itr-pro8rcas .nd Sto.k-id-Trrdc
Invantori.s.t th. and ofthc ycrr :

Work-in-Process

Finished CooG

Stock-in-trade

(^)
lnvertories at $e beginning ofthe yesr :

Work-in-Process

F-inished Goods

Slock-in-trade

Eflect of foreign .rchrnga trrNl.tiotr
Work-in-progrcss

Finished goods

Slock-in-tmde

(c)
Totsl chrnges h Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-pmgress .nd Stock-in-Trede :

Work-in-Process

Finished Goods

Stock-in-Trade

Tot.l chrng.s iD Invdrtorica ol Fioilb.d Good* work-in-progr6s .od Stock-itr-] (B) - (A) + (C)

25 Empoly€c B.n€fit Erpcnlcs
Salaries, Wages. Bonus and Allowances

Contribulion to Provident and Other Funds

Stall welfare Expenses

Jl llarch 202J

U{L. Rr
31 Mrrch 2022

MAU. Rs

565,362

160,7t 1,346

13,0t3,763

546,587,224

36t,216,708 559,600,987

t3,013,763

546,587,224

l,t 15,881

6,044,917

156, t 18,157
(B) 559,600,987 !63,278,955

(.J96..122.0.12)

67,523.011

l,0l I.967

281,85s

68,818,8sJ

t72,836
t12.A16

4,370,905
.l,f,70,905

t0?,014,788

5,949,596

26t,198
954.882

5,065,146

253,502

599,067

t88,099

18,8t7.251

l]9.l t0.732

12,448,40t
185,875,878

l,ll5,88l
(6,968,846)

(390,469,067)

198,321,219

3t,563,636

199,5r3
(22,263\

26 Fitlrnac Cosl

On lease Iiability

37,710,886

t4.270
1t.270

I,319.188
1,339,188

27 Deprcri.lion
Depre.iarion ofTangible Ass€ts (Refer note t)

28 Other Etpenses

Selling Expenses

Clearing and Forwarding

Travelling Expenses

Po*rr and Fuel

Rent

Telephone, Telex & Postage

Repats to Machinery

Insurance

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (net)

Miscellaneous Expenses

98,149,709

2,8r4,898

458,605

r81,688

8,194,821

331,360

66,03t

381,t66
26,822,42t

19,544,644

ls6,9ls,3{5

M. NO.
10'tt7 4

MAURITIUS

*
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to thc Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

29. Capital Managcment

Group's policy is to mainlain a strong capital base so as to maintain invcslor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain futurc dcvelopmenl of the business. Management monitors the retum (EBIT)
on capital, as well as the level of dividcnds to equity shareholders. Posilion. 1'he Group's objective for
capital management is to maximisc shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the
growth of the Group. The Group determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans
and Iong{erm and other strategic investmcnt plans.

Group monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net dcbt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose,

adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and curent investments. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of quity.

Group's policy is to keep the Net debt equity ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio
at 3l March 2023 was as follows.

MUR

30.

31.

Earnings Per sharc (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamin Share:

Employee Benefits
as .equired by Ind AS l9 'Employee Benefits"the croup offers its employees Social Security. cosl

and Siuerance Allowance. During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in thc

account: 
MUR

Particulani 3l Mrrch 2023

t99.513

3l Mrrch 2022

990.344

(738,873)
Social Security Cost

Severance Allowaoce

U

f

Particulrrs

Debt

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity

Net D.bt to Equity r.tio

3l N'lrrch 2023 .31 Nrsrch 2022

B

135,454,023

(135.454,023)

590,093,413

N/A

13,50'1,667

(71,s07,661)

630,730,734

N/A,\/B

Profit atlributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic

EPS (MUR)
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (MUR)

Profit attributable to Equity shareholdcrs for
computing Diluted EPS (MUR)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Sharcs

outstanding - for Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect ofoption outstandinS- Number of
Equity Shares
weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for

Diluted EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (MUR)

Brsic Errnings Per Shrre (MtlR)

Diluted E.rnings Per Shares (MtJR)

B

C=A-B

D

E

F=DrE

3l \larch 2022.ll Merch 2021

45,490.t7 4(41,137,321)

6ll.79r

45,490,114

613.791

(41,137,321)

613,791

613,791

100

74.11

14.11

A/D

C/F

t00

(67.02)

(67.02')

M. NO.
10tJ7a

Particulsrs

Bxsic ,nd Diluted Earnings Per Shrre:

MAURITIUS4



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Noies to thc Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts for the ycar cndcd 3l March 2023

| 99,511 251,,171

F'or employees who are not covered by a pension plan

payable is provided for under the Employment Rights

salary incrcascs will be equal to the discounl rate.

32. Financial Instrumcnt - fair values and risk managcment

Fair value measuremcnts

. thc nct prescnt value of scverance allorvanccs

Act. It has bccn assumed lhat the rate of futurc

MUR
f,l March 2023

I'VTPL Amortised Cost

3l Merch 2022

FVTPL Amortised CostFinrnciel lnstruments by cetegory

Finrncirl Assets
-l 

rade Receivablcs

other Non-Cunent Financial Asses

Cash and cash equivalents

Totrl l-inrncirl Assets

FinsnciNl Liabiliti€s

Non-current Lease Liability

Other Current Financial Liabilitics

Totrl Financirl Li.bilities

225,359.7 62

4't9,167

135.454.023

361,292,952

297,315,048

1.t51,322

73,459.788

371,932,158

393,',t43

15,159,90'l

16,t53,650

85.009.460

85,009d60

Fair value measurement oflease liabilities is not rcquired

l,evel I The hicrarchy in level I includes financial instrumcnts measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 The fair value of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market (like Mark to
Market Derivative and Non-convcrtible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
levcl 2.

Level 3 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
o Market risk
o Cunency risk

Risk management framework
Group's board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and ovcrsight of the
company's risk managcment framcwork. Management is responsiblc for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk managcmcnt policies, under the guidance olAudit Committec.

M. r{O.
lo75la

Group's risk management policies arc establishcd to idcnlifo and analyse the risks faced by it, ro set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monilor risks and adherence to limits. Risk miqagement
policics and syslcms arc revicwcd regularly to rcflecl changes in markel conditions and the{roup.s
activities. Group, through its lraining and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined ,/.onrtruiiir"
control environment in which all employecs understald their roles aidlobligations. . ,,,...r it I 1..t

'l'otal

\\



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the ycar ended 3l March 2023

Group's Audit committec oversees how managcment monitors compliance with the Group's risk
managcmcnt policics and procedures, and reviews the adequacy ollhe risk management framework in
relation to the risk faced by lhe Croup. The audit commince is assisted in is oversight rolc by intemal
audit. Inlemal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managemcnt controls and
procedures, the results of which are repo(ed to the audit commitlee.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activitics (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and mutual funds, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Impairment:

The following table provides information aboul the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss
for trade receivables: ttluR

Carrying amount

3l Mrrch 202J

W€ighted svcrrge loss rrte l.oss allolance

Not due

Past due upto 180 days

Past due l8l-365 days

26.601.961

129.653.548

69.t04.253

ovo

0%

0%

225,159,762

Crrryitrg rmount

15,525,319

239,288,892

42,500,836

3l March 2022

Weighted rverrge lo$s

rate

lyo

o%

0%

l,oss rllolrance

Not due

Past due upto 180 days

Past due l8l-365 days

297.3 t5.048

M. NO.
10fs71

MAURITIUS
a-

s
o-

(MA
limits to contain cxposurcs to credit risk.

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by cach business unit subject to the Croup's established
policy, procedures and contol relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables,

which are non-interesl bearing, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customersand are

generally on 30 days to 270 days credit lerm. Outstanding customcr rcceivables arc regularly

monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely

distributed both economically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed al each reporting date on an individual basis for major

clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogcnous groups

and assessed for impairment collectivcly. The calculation is based on historical data The

maximum exposurc to credit risk at thc rcporting datc is thc carrying value of each class of
financial assets. 'l'he group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the

concentration of risk with respect to trade rcceivables as low, as ils customers are located in

several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Salcs to certain jurisdictions are either based on advance payments or restrictcd Io certain



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to thc Consolidatcd Financial Statements for thc year cnded 3l March 2023

Expccted crcdit loss assessment

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is

determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press

information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement.

Exposures to customers oulstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the

Group to determine incuned and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of
trade receivables do nol reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macroeconomic

indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the

Group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. The trend of the bad

debts is negligible.

MUR

Thc movsmcnt in the allowance for impairment in rcspect oftrade receivables during the year was as

fbllows: MUR

3l \larch 2023 3l March 2022

Balance as at the beginning ofthe year

Impairment loss rccognised (net)

Amounts &ritten off
Balance as at the year end

b) Financialinstrumcnts
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a crcdit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published extemal credit
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its
exposure to various counterparties.

Gross Carrying amount

Average Expected loss rate

Carrying amount oftrade receivablcs (net ofimpairment)

31 Merch 2023

225,359,762

fito/"

225,359,162

3l March 2022

297,3r5,048

0.0%

297.315.048

M. r{o.
lo7t4 The following arc rhe remaining conrractual maluriries ot nn-.i4dirffi&.gre reporting datc.

Thc amounts arc gross and undiscounrcd. and include esrimated /nurest 
fuf#nr,*a 

exclude thc
impact ofnctting agrccments. 

t . ,. i

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that thc Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains
adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at an
optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by intemally generated
funds.'lrade receivables arc kept within manageable levels.

Group aims to maintain thc lcvel of is cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt
investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next
six months.

Exposure to liquidity risk

iv.,4



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statcmcnts for the ycar cndcd 3l March 2023

MUR

As at 3l March
2022

Carrying
Amount

Contractual Cash Flows

'Iotal 0-t2 t-2 2-5
months years yeals

Tmde payables

culrcnt

L€ase liabilities

Totrl

252,694.224 252,694,224 252,694,224

252,691,221 252,691,221 252,69t,221

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices - will affect thc Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parametcrs, while optimising the retum. Financial instrumenb
aflected by market risk include loans and bonowings, deposits, investments, and derivalive
financial instruments.

Group's activities expose it to a varicly of financial risks, including thc effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and inlerest rates. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
such as foreign cxchangc contracts to managc its cxposures to foreign exchange fluctuations. All
such transactions are carricd oul within thc guidclincs sct by the risk management committee.

iv. Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies
in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated and the respective cunencies of the

Group. The cunencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars, Euro

and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not havc any policy to hedge against foreign currency cxposure. In respecl of
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy is to

ensure that its nel exposure is kept to an acceptablc levcl by buying or selling foreign cunencies at

spot rates when neccssary to address short-term imbalanccs.

The following table analyses forcign currency risk as of 3 I March 2023 and 3l March 2022:
MUR

Particulars Jl March 2023

t35,454.023

225,359,762

'10.604

360,8E4J89

3l Mrrch 2022

73,501,667

297.315,048

595.281

371,417,996

Bank Balances

Trade Receivablcs

Other Current Assets

Net Assets / (Liabilities)

\MAU

As at 3l NIarch 202J Carrling Contracturl Cssh l'lows

0-12 t-2 2-5
months yerrs ysrrs

_l 
otal More thrn 5

yerrs

Trade payebles
current

Lease lirbilities

Totrl

l2{,782,157

391,7.13

124,182,t51

393,74J

t2{,7t2,t57

t93.7{3

125,175,900 r25,175,900 l2{,782,t57 J9.1,7.r.1

M. flo.
1O75ta =/

More than 5

yea,s

o-
MAURIT\US



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to thc Consolidatcd l'inancial Statcmcnts for thc vcar endcd 3l March 2023

For the year ended 3l March 2023 and 3l March 2022,every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has afTected the Group's
incremental profit belore taxas per below:

MUR
Year

3l March 2023

3l March 2022

Chrnge in currencycxahsnge rrte
+5% t (_50/.)

+5% t (_50/o)

Effect on profitbefore tax

I 1,267,988 / (l 1,267,988)

I 4.865 ;/ 52 I (t4.865.1 52)

33. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilitics:

During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. the year-end foreign
CLIITCNC surcs that have not been mit atcd b

a) lnterest rate risk
lnterest rale risk is the risk thal lhe fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates is - as there are no borrowings in the Group.

3,1.

b) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there are no equity investments by group.

Disclosurc for operating leases under Ind AS l16 - "Leases,,:

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These arc generally cancellable and
ranges from I I months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by
these leasc anangemcnts and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Apptied a singli
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

Right-of-use asscts

MtIR
f,l Mrrch 2023 Jl Mrrch 2022

22.395,503 65,875,951

t06;t20,41'1 234,439.091

96,243,842 6 t,t47,548

Foreign Currency
Jl Merch 2023 3l March 2022

452,563 1,308,012

2,348,084 5,103173

21,451.214,458 8,906.461,373

Foreign
Currency

EURO

USD

uzs

Perticulars

Amount Receivable

M. NO.
lotst 1

Cost

Opening Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closing Brlance

Accumulxtcd depreciotio'l rnd imprirment

Opening Balance

Depreciation

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals of assets

Closing B.lsnce

3l llarrh 202J ll Nlarch 2022

6.59i.711

7,175.7t8

6,59J,7{.1
'[,zez,z.ls

6,593;t44

581,974

6.593,144

I93,991

4,395,830

2,197,914

{

a derivative instrumenl or otherwise are as below:

6,593,7{t

+



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Crlrying rmounts

Crross

Net

ll \larch 2023 Jl ]larch 2022

7t175,718

l8?,983

6,59J,7{.t

Breakdown of lease cxpcnscs

Short.term lease expense

Low value lease expense

Total lerse erpense

3l Mrrch 202.3

8.t94.823
f,l March 2022

5,065.346

8,t rt,82J 5,065,1.16

Cash outflow on lcases

Repaymcnt of lease liabilities

Totrl crsh outflow oo lcrses

3l Mrrch 202f,

393;t43

393.743

3l Nlarch 2022

(2.469.066)

(2.469.066)

Maturity analysis

[,ess than I !car Over I years

393.743

15. Contingent Liabilitics and commitments:

'l'here are no contingcnt liabilities and commitments by the Croup.

Related party disclosure as requircd by Ind AS 24 are given bclow:

A) Relationships:
Catcgory I - Holding Company
Aianta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

Catcgory II - Dircctors, Key Management Personncl & their Relatives:

Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML)
Mr. Suttian Decrpaul Director (APML)
& Relatives ofKcy Management Personnel

36

M. NO.
1O7514

MAURITIUS

t

o

A

o. lr-

Notes to thc Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts for thc year cnded 3l March 2023

3l Nlrrch 202J

[,ease liabilities

Jl March 2022

Lease liabilities



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

B) Following transactions wcrc canied out with relatcd panies:
\ R

Sr. \o. Prrticularr

Purchrst ofGoods:

Ajanta Phama Ltd.. lndia

Sele ofCrpitrl Goods:

Ajanta Phama t,td.. lndia

Key Mrnagement Comp.nsrlion:

Short Term Employee Benelits

Vinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul

280,2',t8;729 526,515.21'l

882.t90

4.420,71I 5.373.828

l) Amount outstandin as on 3l March 2023 MUR

37. Contribution towards CorporatcSocialRcsponsibility
'l'he articulars ofCSR cx enditure are as follows: MUR

38. Rcmuncration to Auditors: MUR

39. Additional disclosurcs rcquired by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021) to the Companics Act, 2013:

A. Relationship with struck offcompany
'l'he Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companics Act,l956.

B. Undiscloscd incomc

There is no income surrendered or disclosed ^ in.omelufi1flF currenl or previous year in the
tax assessments undcr the lncome Tax Act, 1961, tt]ai has not &en recorded in the books ofaccounr. i ,'.iC. Utilisation of borrowings availcd from banks .
Thc bonowings obtained by 1 he Group from banks have. been appfiod l-or rhe

Categor] ll }Iarch 2023 3l }larch
2021

2.

II

Prrticuhrs
Audit Fees

For Cenification and Other Matters

3l trlrrch 2023

630.000

240,861

f,l Mrrch 2022

530.000

o.
t-

Prrticuhrs

Trade Payables:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd, India

Trade Receivables:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd. lndia

Crtegory .ll IIrrrh 202.1 ll }ltlrch 2{)22

124,782,t57 252.694.224

882.t90

I

2

I

Sr. No.

t.

Prrticulrrs

Construction/ acquisition of asset

On purposes other than (a) above

Shonfall at the end ofthe year

Total ofprevious year shortfall

Sr. No. 3l llarch 2023 ll \larch 2022

313,931

d

h

u. No.
10f171

MAURITIUS

such loans were laken
ich

I



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts for thc year cndcd 3l March 2023

D. Details ofbcnami propcrty hcld

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pcnding against The Group for holding benami
property under thc Benami 'l'ransacrions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.

tl. Wilful defaulter

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govemment or any govemment authority.

F. Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Group has complied with the number oflayers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

G, Compliance with approved scheme(s) ofarrangcments

The Group has not entered into any scheme of anangement which has an accounting impact on
current or previous financial ycar.

H. Details of cry pto {u rrcncy or virtual currcncy

The Group has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency during the curent or
previous year. t

l. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share prcmium r

i. 'l'hc Croup has not advanccd or loaned or invcsted funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (lntcrmediaries) with thc understanding that the lntermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Croup (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ll. The Group has not receivcd any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entitics (l'unding Pany) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that

the Group shall:

a. dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfoIthe I'unding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. (b) providc any guarantee, security or thc like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiarics.

40. Closure of wholly owncd subsidiary:

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Intcrnational Ltd, awholly owned subsidiary ofthe company, was removed
from its rcgister of companics u/s 308 of thc Companics Act 2001 (Mauritius)vide its letter dated 27
September 2022.

,ll. Asset lleld for Sale:

The Company has entered into an anangement for sale of its [,easehold improvements, Plant &
Machinery, Fumiture & Fixtures, Office equipment at BPML Building, Royal Road, Goodlands,
Mauritius for a valuc of MUR 5 million,for which full advance has bcen receivcd and recognised as

part of other currcnt liability, subjcct to fulfilment of ccrtain conditions. Transaction is expected to be

completed in the next l2 months. Pending fulfilment ofsuch conditions, thc said investmenl has been

classified as Non-cuncnt asset held for sale.

l"

c

$

MAURITIUSM. NO.
107511



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemcnts for the ycar endcd 31 March 2023

42, Prcvious ycar figurcs have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the
Companies Act,20l3 eflective from 0l April 2022.

43. The Group has onc segment ofactiyity namcly "Pharmaccuticals".

In tcrms of our report attachcd

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(lCAI FRN: I

Swap ]Iodi
Partncr
UI)lN: 2l I 0757,11](;TKDU826,l

Mumbai -24April. 2023

rMv
Di

For and on bchalf of Board of Dircctorsof
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

u. no.lot'.

MAURITIUS
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Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local laws
ofthe country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2022 to 3lst December 2022. T\e
company follows the period lst Apnl 2022 to 3lst March 2023. ln order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES NC. with that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES lNC. for the period lst April 2022 to 3lst March 2023 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PIIARMA PHILIPPINES INC. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet

as at 3lst March 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanalory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone Ind AS financial
statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma
Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to
prepare its consolidated financial statements.

ln our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2023, and
profit/loss, changes in equityand its cash flou,s for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities .for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section ofour report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

M. NO.
t0ts7a

-

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC.



Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit ofthe financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in secrion I34(5) ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
(changes in equity) and cash flows ofthe Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding ofthe assets ofthe Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with

M. NO,
1075.11
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by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.



(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone hnancial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 olthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3l st March,
2023 lrom being appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 (2) ofthe Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial positionl

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfened, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

/or G.RModi& Co
Chartered Accountanls
Firm's re ber: ll26l7W

CA pnil Modi
Partfier
Membership number: 107574

Mumbai

24th ApriI,2O23

UDIN NO .: 23107 57 4BGTKDT5077

M. NO.
10t5)4



Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA
PHILIPPINES INC. ("the Company") as of 3lst March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of lntemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

lnstitute ofChartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal hnancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements. whether
due to liaud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial

u. NO.
1015t1

reporting.

:

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounring
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 3lst March 2023, based on the intemal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the tnstitute ofChartered Accountants of India.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Chartered Accountanls
Firm's number: I 12617W

0

Swapnil Modi
Parlner
Membership number: 107574

Mumbai

246 April,2023

UDIN NO: 231075748GTKDT5077

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma Philippincs lnc.

Balance Sheet
as at l) March 2023

(Currency PHI,)

Prop€rty, plarl and equipmenl

Oth€r intangible assers

Right to use ass€ls

Financial assets

Olher financial ass€ts

Deferred tax assels (net)

Tolr l non-.u rrenr , r(t

3I M.rch 2023
PIlP

3l Mrrch 2022
PITP

7

7

7

8

9

20,t26,652
295,980

6,40t,102

25,432,727

4t 1.177

4,27 t ,545

70,391

917.t32 t,816,0m
27.8t2.158 12.008. t2r

Currcnt rss€ls

lnventories

Finficial ass€ts

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equival€nts

othe r current assets

10

ll
t2
ll

111.859,352 393,046.074

504, ,939
64,471,398

4t.392,t t 9

425,202.953

t 7l, t 62.006

25,t ,567
Total current assels

Totalassrrs

Torrl Eq(lirr

Tolal non-curreor liabililies

'l otrl rurrent lirbiliritt

944,669,808 1,0t4,607.599

f,quilyrd Li.bilili.!
Equily

E4uity share caDilal

Orher Equity

Liebilities
Non current li.bililies

Financialllabilities
Borro\ ings

Lease liabilil}"

In terms ofour rcporl attached

For G. R- Nlodi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ll
l5

200.000,000

480,0t4,248

t6
t1

8.232.089

1.3r5.251

|,24t,342
4.400,089

511

Current lirbilities
Financialliabilities

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Olher currenl liabilities

l8
l9
20

286,t06.840

I, t 94,607

19,775,234

:85,890.528

1,848.112

61.221.182

367,076,680 350,%0,042

Tol.l equily and liabililies

Srgnr fi canl a.counting policies

Th€ notes refened to above form an inlegral pon of the consolidaled fimncial slatemenls

As p€r our repon ofeven dale anached
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Aj anta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statemcnt of Profit and Loss Account
lor the fear ended .l I March 2021

(Currency:PIIP)

Incomc

Revenue tom opeotions
Olher income

Tolrl iDcoma

Expcnsas

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories olfi nished goodJwork-in-progresystock-in-tmde

Employee benefi ts expenses

Finance costs

Depr€.iation & amo(isation expens€

Oth€r expens€s

Tolrl arpant.s
Profit bcfor. t.r

Tax expense

Curent tax

Deflercd tax

Prolit for thc y.rr

[rrning Prr Equily Shrr. (Brsic & Dilot.d) (Frc. I rlu. PIlPl00/-)

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notes rcferred to above form an integal part of thc consolidaled financial stalemenLs

As per our repon o[even date aMched

In lcrms olour r.porl rtlrch.d
l'or C. R. luodi& Co.

Ch{rt.rad Aacounlan
(ICAI FRN

SwrpnilUodi
Partner

Ntumbxi,2,1Apr, 2023

t DIN \O r 2310757{BGTXDT5077

2t
22

I ,702,26t ,161
(2r,6s2\

1.5 r4,212.087

(8,869.968)

ll Urrch 2023

PHP
3l )trr(h 2022

P}IP

t,702,019,5t1 1,505,362,ll9

23

24

25

26

27

28

| ,074,992,267
59,186,t22

9t,2t2,231
EE8,l98

7,109,087

944,45t.175
(46.270,r El)
88,15t,t 8l

t.428,299

9,279,595

189,488,413

I,1t6,52t,701
219 '714 r86

|,.183.102.tt91

21t,716,623 318,831,117

53,871,503 ?7.502.101

I I1,175

241,r99,939

I,029 ,1:4

t63,81J,697

t0 8t.92 r20.60

['or snd on brhslfofBorrd ofDir.(tors
Airnlr Phrrmr Philippin.s Inc.

Rrj.sh M. Agr.wrl
l)irector

Mumbri,2,l Apr,2023
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement of cashflow
for the year ended J I March 202J

(Currency: PIIP)

3l Mrrch 2022

A. Crsh flow from opcrrti[g aativitias
Profil beforc tax
Adjustment for

Deprccialion and amorlisation expense

Finance costs

Operrting crsh flow befora working capitrl chrng.s
Change in working capital

Dccrease /(increase) in lrade rcceivable
Decrease /(increase) in olhel non curent ass€ts

Decrease /(incresse) in olher curenl assels

Decrease / (increase) in inventories
lncreas€ / (decrease) in other cunent liabilities
lncrease / (decrease) in lmde Davables

21E.7.16,621 .1 1 8.813 .1 1 7

7.109,087

EEE,398

226,9,t4,10t

9.279.595
1.42E,299

J29.511Jl I

(79.741,986)

t9t,249
( 16, r95,552)
59,t86,722
15,900,326

2t6,312

(4E,697,9E4)

(678,182)
(r7,690,2Et)
(46,270, I El)
12,110,689

9r,301. r26
Cash gencrst€d from operrtions

Net income lax paid
207,20E,r78

\5 4.902,927 )

3! 9.E3E.{E9
(77.613.478)

l]

(,

Casb llow from itrvrstirg acliviti.s
Capilal expenditure on property, plant and equipmenl including capita
Capilal expenditure on right to use ass€t

Ncl crsh usad itr invasting rctivities

(60r,551)
(1.209,821)
(4Or r,372)

(746.333)

(4.7',t2.769)
(5.s19,101)

620,053

3,6t1,932
( 1,428,299)

(150.000,000)

t52J05r52

(3.009.251)

(1,084,836)

(EtE,39E)
(2s0,000,000)

2{2.205.012

Crsh flow from linrncinq rctivilics
Repayment ofnon cuoent borowings
Repayment of lease liability (including interesl lhereor)
Interest paid

Dividend paid

Net cxsh used in IiDancing aclivitics (254.982,lt7)

(l06,6tt.60t)

171.t 62,006
6.r,,t73J9E

(117,' 20J14)

69.565,s97

81,596,409
r71,162,006

Net increrse / (decrers.) in cesh xnd cesh equiyrlenls

Cash and cash equivalents as al the beginning oflhe year

Cash and cash equivalents as al the end ofthe year

Figurcs in bmckets indicates outflo*.
Not. :

l. The above Cssh Flow Stalement has been prepared under'lndirect Method' as set oul in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS _ 7)

" Statement of Cash Flow" under Sectioo I 3 3 of the Companies Act 20 | 3 .

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, cuncnl accounts and deposils with baDks. Cash equivalents are sholrl-term balances (wilh an

original matudty ofthrce rnonths or less from lhe dale ofacquisition).

Signifi cant accounting policies

The not€s referred 10 above form an intcgral part ofthe consolidated financial statemenls

As p€r our repon ofeven date attached

L t€rms ofour reporl sttached
For G. R. uodi & (lo. !'or end ot! behrlfofBorrd of Dircctors of

Airntr Phrrm, Philippines Ioc.Chrrtcred -.\ccou
(l(.\l f R\ :

s

*.--.J
Parlner
Mumb.i, 2{ Apr,2021

Rrjesh M. Agrrw.l
Dirtctor

Uumbai.2{ Apr,2023
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Aj anta Pharma Philippines Inc.

Statement ofChaDges itr Equity
Ior the year ended 3l March 2023

(Currency PHP)

A. f,quitY Shor. Crpilrl PIII'

0l April2022

Ch.ng.s itr
tlquitY Sh.r.
Crpitrl du.lo

R.strtcd b.l.nc. Ch.n8.s ir
rt ih. b.ginning .quity sh.r.
oflhc cu.r.Dl (.pit!l durirg

reporting pcriod ih. ].!r

B.l.ncc.s rt 3l
M!rch 2023

Subs(ribed & Prid up

200,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000

200,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000

200.000,000
200.000,000
200.000,000

B. Othcr Equitr
For.ign Oahcr il.m ofoth.r 'lolrl Equir!

As rt I April 2021 155. 9,3E6
241,199,919

J8a.8tl.l0E J88,Ell.J0E
24t,199,9r'

2{r.t99,9.t9

(150.000,000)

2{t.199.9J9

(t50,000.000)

21t.199.9.]9

(t50.000,000)

Mir(h 21122 ]J 92J {1 tt
l6_],81_1,697

0t .llt

.841,Profit for rhe pcriod
Othcr comprchcnsiv€ incomc
Total comprehensiv€ incom.
Transfer ro Retained Eamings

t63,841,697 t63,&t3,597 - 163,&1.t,697

_---(250.000.000)--(2s0.000,000)-(2s0,000,ut0)
.\r Jl )l.rch 2l)2.) - JJ.69,1.92J - J60.16J.022 J9l.ti57.9ll l9J.ri5?,9.1.t

Scc rccoDpinyitrs trotes f(,rming prl ofthe fitrancialstat.h.nts

In r.rms ofour r.port.tarchcd
For C. R. Modi& Co.

( ICAt
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t P

c

1'or rnd on behrlfotBo!rd ofDir..ton ot
A.i!rr3 Phrrmr Philippitres Inc.

a.

Y,

-o
2
rn

PHILIPPINES
Munbri,24 Apr,2023
UDIN NO : 2l l0?574BGTKDT5077

O) Munrbai.24 Apr, 2023

Totll compr.h€nsive incomc
Trasfer to Rerair€d &mings
Dividcnd Paid



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to thc Financial Statcmcnts as on 3l March 202J

l. Corporatelnformation

Ajanta Pharma Philippines [nc. is a limitcd liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma l,td., India. The address of its
registered office is locared at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1286, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City,
Philippines.

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities.

The Financial Statcment for the ycar ended 3l March 2023 have bcen reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Dircctors at its meeting held on 24

April2023.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statement ofthe Company has been prepared in all matcrial aspects in accordance with
the recognition & measuremenl principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter

referred to as the 'lnd AS') rcad with Rule 4 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions ofthe Act and accounting principles generally

accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,

excepl otherwise stated.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency ofthe Company is Philippine Peso (Php).

Rounding of Amounts

All amounls disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

lacs.

4

'l'hc asscts and

classification.
liabilities in thc balancc sheet are presented bascd on currcnt/non-current

An asset is current when it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted ftom bcing exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at

least twelve months after the repo(ing period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected 10 bc scttlcd in normal opcrating cycle, or
. Hcld primarily for the purposc oftrading, or
. Due to be seltlcd within twelvc months afler the rcporting period. or

r. tlo.
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statcments as on 3l March 2023

There is no unconditional right to dcfer thc sctllemenl of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. Terms of a Iiability that could, at the option of thc counterparty, result

in its setllemcnt by the issue ofequity instrumenls do not aflect its classificalion.

All other liabilities arc treated as non-currenl.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the timc behveen the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation

in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature ofproducts / activities ofthe Group and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle

as l2 months for the purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as curent and non-cunent.

6. Significant Accounting Policics

6.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in the financial
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the
time that cost is incurred, il the recognilion crileria are met, and excludcs the costs of day-to-day
servicing.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises ils purchase price, including import duties.
ta,xes and any dircctly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Cost also includes any rclated asset retirement obligation (ARO) and interest
incurred during the construction period on funds bonowed to financc the construction of the
projects. Expendilures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and mainlenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the
period the cost arc incuned. Major repairs arc capilalized as part of property and equipment only
when it is probable that fulure economic benefits associatcd with the items will flow to the Company
and the cost ofthe itcms can be measured reliablv.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

I)articulars tlsel ul Lifc
Condominium Units 20 years

Ifumiture, Fixtures & F'ittings 2 years

Office Equipments 2 years

Computers 2 years

Motor Vchicles 5 years

'fhe carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when evenls or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounls unlil they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortizition are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed ofor when it is
permanently withdrawn from use and no luture economic benefits are .ex
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on thc rctircment and disposal ir il! and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds unt

f.

z
m
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of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period ofretirement or dispos
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts as on Jl March 2023

6.2 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently mcasured aI cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairmenl loss. These are amortized over
estimaled useful lifc using the straight line method. If there is an indication that there has been a
significant change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the
amortization is revised prospcctively to reflect lhe new expectations.

lntangible assets are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economic
benefits are expected from lhese asscts.

6.3 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone enlity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial asscts as subsequently measured at amortiscd cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis ol its business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics ofthe financial asset.

lnitial Recognition and Measurcment

All financial assets are recogniscd initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
ofthe financial asset.

Subsequent Measure me nt

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)
o Financial assets aI amortised cosl
When assels are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through othcr comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measurcd at Amortised (lost (net of any write down for impairment, if any)

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and conlractual terms of the asset

give rise on specificd datcs Io cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such

financial assets arc subscqucntly mcasurcd at amortised cost using thc cflectivc interest rate (EIR)
method lcss impairment, if any. 'l'he losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement

ofprofit and loss.

Financial Assets measurcd at Fair Value lhrough Other Comprehensive lncome ("FVTOCI")

l'inancial assets under this calegory are measured initially as well as al cach reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold asscts for both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. f'air value movements are recognized
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

Financial Assets mcasured at Fair Vatue through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair

value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in Equity lnstruments

Equity instrumenls which are held for trading are classified as at FV'|PL AIl other equity

instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,

are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other

comprehensive income to profit or loss.

I lYestment in l)cbt Instruments

A debt instrumcnt is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does

not meet the critcria for categorizalion as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

lmpairme nt of Financial Assets

In accordance with lnd - AS 109. Company applies expected credil loss (ECL) modcl for
measurcmcnt and rccognition of impairment loss on the financial asscts that arc dcbt instruments
and tradc rcceivablcs.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bonowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabiliri es held for trading
and financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognilion as at fair valuc through profit or loss
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings arc subscquently measured at amortiscd cost using thc
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) merhod. Gains and losses are recogniseil 'in prolit or loss when thc
liabilities arc derccognised as well as through EIR amorti nlortiscd cost is calculated
by taking into account any discounl or premium on acqu

sation pfooess.
isitioq-and fees or an integral

part of the ulR. the EIR amortisation is included as finance coit5 in the

0. {
n
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Derccognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised whcn the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to thc Financial Statements as on 3l March 2023

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation undcr the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expircs. When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on subslantially differenl terms, or lhc terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profil and Loss.

Derivative Financial I nstrument

The Company uses derivative financial instrumenls, such as forward cunency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currcncy risks. Such derivative financial inslrumenls are initially recognised at fair value
on the dale on which a derivativc conlract is entered into and are subsequently re-mcasured at fair
value. Derivativcs are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positivc and as financial
liabilities when thc fair valuc is ncgative.

6,4 Inventories

Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progrcss are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis. The cosl of Inventories have been

computed to includc all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production

overheads based on normal capacity and other relaled cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for
and valued al nel rcalisable valuc.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cosl incuned up to lhe date ofbalance sheet

6.5 Cash and Cash l)quivalents

6.6 Cash Flow Statcments

Cash and Cash Equivalens comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed

deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-

term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an

integral part ofthe group's cash management.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profil before tax is adjusted for the

effects oftransaCtions ofa non-cash nature, any defenals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash

receipts or paymcnts and item of income or cxpcnscs associated with investing or financing cash

flows. The'cash flow from opcrating, investing and financing activities of the company arc

segregated.
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to thc Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

6.1 Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenuc Transactions denominatcd in forcign cunencies are normally rccorded at the exchange rate

prevailing on the dale of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign cunencies at the year-end ate re-measured at the exchange

rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign cunency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on accounl of cxchange differencc cither on settlement or on restatement is

recognised in the Statemenl of Profil and Loss.

6.8 RevenueRecognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS I l5 (applicable from I Aptil 2018)

Under lnd AS 115, the group rccognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was

satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were

transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a s-Step Methodology which is as

follows:

Step I : Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentiry the performance obligations in the contract

Slep 3: Determine the transaction price

Stcp 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entily satisfies a performance obligation

Sale ofGoods

The group applied Ind AS I l5 using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is measured based on thc transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is

specified in a contract with cuslomer. Revenuc are net of estimated retums and taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transfened upon
the shipment ofthe goods 10 the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

The transaction price is documentcd on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed
credit terms with customer.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is
highly probable that a significant rcversal will not occur.

Sales retum is variablc considcralion that is rccognised and recgrded based on historical experience,
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as d. ciion.,frdE revenue. The methodology
and assumptions used 1o estimale retums are monitore/and adjusted r\gularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market condition'S

P

c

0. {'
z
n

O)

PHILIPPINES

Interesl income

M. rto.
1var.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

lnterest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as rcvenue when right to receive is established.

Income from Export Bene/its and Other Incentives

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.

6.9 Employec Benefits

Short-term Benefits - 'lhe Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
expense for services rcndered by employecs during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given
by the Company to its cmployecs include salaries and wagcs, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absenccs, bonuses and other non-monetary bencfits.

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does nol have a formal retirement benefit plan.
However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the
Retirement Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for
rctiremenl benefits of cmployees in thc private scctor. an employee upon rcaching the agc of 60
years or more, but not beyond 65 ycars, rvho has served for at least five (5) years in a private
company, may retirc and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made

considering that there are no more than ten (10) employees who had served at least five years and
the turnover ofemployees is high.

Compensated Absences - Compensalcd absences arc rccognized for the numbcr of paid leavc days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in
the salaries and wages account and arc recognized when availed of by the employees.

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits
Retirement and other long-term benefits cosls are actuarially determined using the projccted unit
credit method. This method reflccts scrvices rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and

incorporatcs assumptions conceming employees' projecled salaries. l'he calculation of defined

benefit obligations is pcrformed annually by a qualificd actuary. When thc calculation results in a

polential assel for the Company, thc recognized asset is limiled to the present value of cconomic

benefits available in thc form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in the future

contributions to the plan. To calculatc the present value ofeconomic benefits, consideration is given

to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements ol the net retirement and other long-term employee bencfits liability, which

comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, cxcluding interest), are recognized immcdiately in OCl. The Company

determines the net intercst expense to measure thc net retircmcnt benefit liability (asset) on at the

beginning of the annual period to thc then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account

any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribulions

and benefit payments. Net interest cxpense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are

recognized in profit or loss.

when the benefits of a plan are changcd or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit

that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is rccognized immediately in profit or
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statcments as on 3l March 2023

loss. Thc Company recognizcs gains and losscs on thc scttlemcnt ofa defined benefit plan whcn thc

sctllement occurs.

The net relirement and other long-Ierm benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate

of the present value of the defincd bcnefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of
which ihe obligations are to be seftled directly. The present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is

dclcrmined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of
govemment bonds that have terms to maturity approximaling the terms of the related retiremcnt and

other long-term benefi ts liability.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share-based compensation plan

6.10 Borrowing Costs

Bonowing cosls comprise intercst expcnse on bonowings and other bank charges. Borrowing costs

directly attributable to the acquisition. construclion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost of
the asset. All other bonowing costs are expenscd in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs

consist of inlerest and olher costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bonowing of funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchangc differcnces to lhe extent regarded as an adjustment to the

bonowing costs. Transaction costs are chargcd to statcmenl of profit and loss as financial expenses

over thc lerm ofborrowing.

6.1I Lcase

'fhe company's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whelher a contracl conlains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contracl conveys lhe right to control the use of an identificd asset for a period of time in
cxchange for considcration. To assess whethcr a contract conveys thc right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company assesses whelher: (l ) lhe contract involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period ofthe lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ('ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangemcnts in which it is a lessee, except for leases

with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low valuc leases, the Company recognizes the lease paymenls as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term ofthe lease.

Certain lease anangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end ofthe
lcase term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

1'he right-of-use assets are initially rccognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lcase liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
Icss accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Ilight-of-usc asscls arc dcprecialcd from thc commcnccr1en t datc on a straighGlinc basis ovcr the
shorter ofthe lease term and useful life of thc underly rng asset. f use assets are evaluated for
rccoverability whenever events or changes in ci rc{lmstanccs

Right o
indi&tc that their carrying amounts

may nol be recoverable. For the purpose of imp{irmcnt tosting, tlie recoverab (i.e. the
c-in-u5b) is determined al asset
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to thc Financial Statements as on Jl March 2023

basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for thc Cash Generating Unit (CCU) ro
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a conesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessmcnt if whether it will exercise an exlension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheel and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contsact is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leascs.

For operating leases, rental incomc is recognizcd on a straight linc basis over the term ofthe relevanl
leasc.

Transition
Effective I April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS ll6 "Leases" and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on I April, 2019 using the modificd retrospcctive method and has taken the
cumulative adjustment to retained eamings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the
generally accepted interest rate and the right ofuse asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 3l March,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue lo be reported under the
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year cnded 3 I March, 2019.

On transition, the adoption ofthe ncw standard resulted in recognition of 'Right ofUse'asset ofPHP
2,762,968 and a lease Iiability of PHP 2,881,829. The cumulative effect of applying the standard,

amounting to PHP I I 8,861 was debited to retained eamings, net of laxes. The effect of this adoption
is insignificant on the profit beforc tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS I l6 will
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activitics and an increase in cash outflows from
financing aclivities on account of lcase payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical cxpedients clected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio ol leascs of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize righlof-use assets and liabilities for leases with lcss

than l2 monlhs of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.

Accordingly, Ind AS ll6 is applied only to contracts that werc previously identified as leases

under Ind AS 17.

I
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statemcnts as on 31 March 2023

6.12 Earnings Pcr Share

Basic eamings pcr equity share is compuled by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity

holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profi1 a$ributable to the

equity holders of the company by the weighted average numbcr of equity shares considered for
deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that

could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential

equity shares are adjusted for thc proceeds reccivable had the equity shares been actually issued at

fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutivc potential equity shares are determined independently for each

period presented.

Income tax expensc comprises current and deiened income tax

Income tax expense is recognizcd in net profit in thc statement ofprofit and loss except to the extent
Ihat it relates to items recognizcd directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for cunent and prior periods is recognized at the amounl
cxpected to be paid to or recovered from the lax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates

and tax laws lhat have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

l)cferred incomc tix irssets and liabilities are recognized for all tcmporary differences arising
beflveen lhe lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Dcferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced Io the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Irinancial asscts and financial liabilities are oflset and the net amount is reported in the balancc
shcet, ifthere is a cuncntly cnforccable lcgal right to offsel the rccognised amounts and there is an

intention to settlc on a net basis. to rcalise the assets and seltle thc liabilities simultancouslv.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or subslantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxablc income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
rccovered or setlled. The effecl ofchanges in ta,x ratcs on deferrcd income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as income or expensc in the period that includes lhe enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to thc extent lhat it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and cunent tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off lhe recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and setlle the liabilily simultaneously.

[)efened income taxes are not providcd on lhe undislributed eamings of subsidiaries where it is

expected that thc eamings ofthe subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

6.1{ Dividends to Shareholders

Annual dividcnd distribution to the shareholderS is re-cognised as a liability
the dividends are approved by thc shareholdcr5.lA4y.i4toim dividcnd
approval by Board ofDirectors. Dividend payable is iecognised dircctly in eq AP

in the period in which
paid is recognised on
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

6.15 Provisions, Contingcnt Liabilitics, Contingcnt Assets and Commitmcnts

Provisions (excluding retirement bcncfits and compensated abscnccs) arc not discounted to its
present value and are determincd based on besl estimate required to scttle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These arc reviewcd at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

lf there is any expectation thal some or all ofthe provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is

recognised as a separale asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense

relating to a provision is presented in the statemenl of profit and loss net of any virtually certain
reimbursement.

Contingent liability is discloscd in the case of:
o A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow ofresources

will be required to settle the obligation;
. A present obligation arising from pasl events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

. A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

remote.

6.t6

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets

are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Slatements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for

completion of assets and Non-canccllable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, conlingenl assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance

sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where.the

company has a binding obligation at the end of the lcase period to rcstore the leased premises in a

condition similar to inception of lcasc. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to

settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that

particular assei The cash ilows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific

io the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of ttre discount is recognised in the income

statement as a finance Jost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are rcviewed annually

and adjusted as appropriatc. Changes in estimated future costs or in thc discount rate applied are

added to or deducted from the cost ofthe asset.

Fair value measuremcnt

The Company measures financial instrumenls, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
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date in accordance with Ind AS I 13.

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a pasl evenl and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respcct of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Ifthe effect of the timc value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounled using a cunent pre-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, thc risk specific to the liability. Whcn discounting is used, the

increase in the provision duc to the passage oftime is recognised as a finance cost.
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6.17

6.18

Financials Statements have bcen prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

material items in the statement of financial position:
. Derivative financial instruments are measured a1 fair valuc received from Bank.

. Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as pcr Net Asset Value (NAV).

. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) al fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the pricc that would be received to sell an asset or se1lle a liability in an ordinary

transaction between markct participants at the measuremcnt date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markct participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic bcnefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and bcst use.

The Company uses valualion techniques lhal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measurc fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpus
and minimising the use ofunobservable inpuls.

All assets and liabilities for which lair value is mcasured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measuremenl as a whole:
o Level I Quotcd (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Iiabilities.
. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
. Level 3 - Valuation lechniques lor which the lowest lcvel input that is significant to the fair

value measuremenl is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities lhat are rccognised in the financial statements on a recuning basis, the
Company delermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on lhe lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremenl as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair valuc disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the naturc, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Rccent accounting pronouncem€nts

Ministry of corporale Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such nolificalion which would have been applicable from I April 2022.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The prcparatio n of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilitics, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at thc end of the rcporting period. Howevcr,
uncertainty about these assumptions and cstirhates -muld result in outcomcs that requirc a material

the qe5ets or liabiliries in furure Deriods
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts as on 3l March 2023

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an anangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At thc inccption or on reassessment ofan arrangement that contains a lease,
Company separatcs paymcnts and other consideration required by the anangement into
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements that such conlracts are in the nature ofoperaling leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are
accounted for based on their relalive fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies
with finite life under lhe contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current
treatment represents the substance ofthe arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equipmcnt
Determination of thc cstimated useful life of tangible assets and the asscssment as to which
components of the cost may bc capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life
of useful lives/ratcs prcscribed by the GAAPs of the respective countrics. Assumptions also
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and

which components ofthe cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.

(d) Intangible Assets
Intemal technical or uscr leam assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets

Management believes that assigned useful lives arc reasonable.

Recognition of deferrcd tax assets and income tax
Defened ta,x assel is recognised for all the deductible lemporary differences to the extent

that it is probable thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differcncc can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be

available while recognising deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is rcquired for the calculation of provision for income taxes and

deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the

carrying amount of dcferred tax assets. The factors uscd in estimatcs may differ from actual

outCome which could lcad to significant adjustment to the amounts rcported in the financial

statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the

amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of intemational business

and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
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(e) Rccognition and measuremcnt ofdefined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial

assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation

and vested futurc bcnefits and lile expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to markct yiclds at thc end ofthe reporting period on thc govcmment bonds. The

period to maturity of the undcrlying bonds conespond to the probable maturity of the posr
employment benefi t obligations.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probablc

that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of defencd tax assets that can

be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and rcccnt business performances and developments.

(g) Recognition and measurement ofother provisions
The recognition and measuremenl of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an oulflow of resources, and on past expcrience and circumstances known al
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future dale may, therefore, vary
from the figure included in other provisions.

(h) Contingcncies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow ofresources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome olpending matters with accuracy.

(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts rcceivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables arc
written off when managemenl seems them nol collcctible. Impairment is made on the
expecled credit losses, which are lhe present value of the cash shortfall over the expected
life ofthe financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk ofdefault
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation are based on pasl history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking eslimates at the end ofeach reponing period.

differenccs arising bctween the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes

to such assumptions, could neccssitate futurc adjustments to tax income and expense already

recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possiblc

consequences ofaudits by the tax authorities ofthe respective countries in which it operates.

Thc amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as cxperience of previous

tax audits and diffcring intcrprctations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and thc

responsible tax authority. Such differences of intcrpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

0) Insurance claims
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery.

(k) Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (.CGU')
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growlh in
EBITDA' long term grow'th rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
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Bilec. .l th. b.ginning ofrhcyc{I

Le$r Apprcpriaiions
-Divide P.idon Equiry Shar.s

-Divid.nd Distribution Td On koposcd
-Tresf.E d frcm rctrircd .ffiings
-Tr|nsfned lo Gctr.Bl ReseN.

B.l.nc. .t lh. ye.r .nd
Toi.lOrh.r Equity

446,3t9.125
163,841.697

355,119.186

24t,199,939

l6 Non-Curr.rtBorrowitrgt
Y.hicl. t .n. (scur.d)

fron Bi s(PHP)

l7 L.ri.li.bili(y

Tr.d. PrFbl.s lo Rcllr.d Prrry

l9 Orher (rurr.trt Fin.oci.l Li.bilitiet
Cuncnl lt{aturilies oflongrem debl

20 Oth.r Currerl Lirbilili.3

13,694.923

11,69J,92J

250.000,000

8.212,089

286.t06.840
:86.106.8r0

t.194,607
I,191,607

(1,875,265)

(!l1,652)

1.074.92,267

33,694,921

.!.],69,1,923

150.000,000

I1.24t,342
I l,2lt.Jtl

4-,100.089

.r.100,089

2E5.E90.528

285,890.528

t.848.132

61.221,t82
6J,22t.182

1.514.212.087

t,5r.r.2t2.0E7

(10,?60,618)

L6.16.J32

22 OTHER INCOME
Erchanse Differe.cc (Ncr)

Prolir on Slle ofFircd Assets

Inr.rc$ from Ofiers

Misc.lllneous Incomc

t27.E99

1,535,714

t36,t85

t,254,4U

2l Purchrs.of StocL-ir'Ind.

M. r{o.
107571
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36OJ6J"Or' 4l6JtrJ25
J9J,E57.9,1.1 {t0'0laJ.l6

E,211.089

1.702.:6l.l6l
I.702.t6t,167

I :115.15:r

______t!.1!!lJ

19.775.234
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(CEcncy: PHP)

2{ Chrtrgd in ln!.ntori.. o, Fitriri.d coodt, Work,in-proSr6l ..d Stock-in-Tr.dc
lnv.ntorid.t lhr cnd of th. yor :

Jl Urr.h 2021

PIIP
!l lu.rct 2022

PqP

393.046,07,1

Inv.nlorid r( tt. b.gitrningofthe ye.r

Efr6t of ror.ign .r.h!n8. rrrntl.rior

Tot.l.hrrg6 in I trv.ntori.. of ririrh.d Coodr, Work-in-progre*r rrd Sto.&-in-Tr.d.:

Toi.l.t.ng.! in lnvarlori$ ofrirtuh.d coodr, Work-in,p.ogrN rrd Sro.k-iFTr.d.

25 [mpoly.. B.n.fil Erp.trG
Srldi.s. WrEcs. Bonu! rnd Allowac.s
Stiffw.lfe Exp.a.!

lntcrcsi exp.ns.s

ll.t 859,152

(A)

(B) 391,046.074

59.186,722

(B), (^)+ (C) se,tE6,722

l lJt,t78,989

Jt3,E59.352

39J,046,074

393,046,074

346.775,E91

l:16.775.891

(c)

(46.270_r83)

(.16.270.'81)

89E.lEl,l92

90,E19,E7E

392,353

a7,a12,715

118,458

9t,r12,231 88.15t.181

1.,128,299

1.128,199

2t (xn.. Erp.n3.r
S.llins Exp.ns!
Cl€.f,n9 rnd Foru!.ding
Travelling Exp.r*s

Tel.plonc. Tclcx & Pon.g.
Rcp.iR to Buildi.S
Mi*.lle@s Exp.nxs

43,37E,902

112,9EE,068

14,159,05E

694,056

2,07t.fr2
t.399,792

241,106

14,555,648

7E.169,402

t34,015,729
1E,017,076

EI9,7EE

8t3,206

t,336,97t

6tE,760

t5,901,24E

189.188,tJ3

PH
,6

m(tc
4-M NO.

107574

PH\L\PP\NES

27 D.pr.ci.lion
D.pr6 ion ofTDgibl. Air.rs (Refcr not.4)

,J?r-5q5

888.198

_______i!!!:8

l.:109.087

?JO'J'S?

tJg.Il.t86



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for thc ycar ended 3l March 2023

29. Capital Management
Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business. Managemcnt monitors the retum (EBIT)
on capital, as well as thc lcvcl of dividcnds to equity shareholders. 'fhe Company's objective for
capital managcment is to maximise shareholder valuc, safeguard business continuity and support the
growth of thc company. 'l'hc company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating
plans and long term and other strategic investment plans.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purposc,
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalcnts and short-term investments.
Adjusted equity comprises all components ofequity.

Company's policy is to keep thc ratio below l.00and ils adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 3l March
2023 was as follows. PHP

Prrticuhrs

Debt

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents

Net Deht

Equity

Net Debt to Equity r.tio
B

A/B

3l Mrrch 2023

9,426,695

64,473,398

(55,046,703)

593,857,944

-0.09

3l Merch 2022

13,089,674

t1t,162,006

( 158,072,332)

680,0r4.248

-0.23

30

31.

Earnings Per share (EPS):

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Dilutcd Eamin Per Share:

Employec Benefits

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits',the Company offers its employees: Short-term

employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other govemment contributions

which'are due within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the

related service. The total consideration paid in 2022-23 was PHP9l,2l2,23l(Previous Ycar

PHP88,l5l,l8).

Retirement plan - The Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not have more than

ten ( l0) employees who had served at lcast live years. Rctirement expcnscs are recognized upon actual

availingof qualified employecs which will be determ incd by the Company based on the actual number

No retirement costs were recognized.

tsEHt(

m
(/)

0_

4

V

Profit atlributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS
(PHP)
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (PHP)

Profit anributable to Equity shareholders for computing
Dilured EPs (PHP)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding -

for Basic EPS

Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of
Equity Shares
weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted

EPS
Face Value per Equity Share (PHP)

Besic Errnings Pcr Sherc (PHP)

Diluted f,rrnings P.r Sh.rcs (PHP)

B

C:A-B

D

E

F=D+E

ll \ Ia rch 2{l2J 3l llarch 2022

241.199.939163.843.697

2,000,000

163.843.697

2.000.000

241,199,939

2,000,000

2,000,000

100

120.60

120.60

A/D

C/T

100

Et.92

81.92

Particulars

Blsic end Dilulcd llsrnings Pcr Shrre:

PH\L\T\NES

of years of service in compliance with RA No. 7641

t

M. llo.
107571



Ajanta Pharma PhiliPPines [nc.
Notcs to thc Financial Statemcnts for thc year ended 3l March 2023

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk managcment

l'air value mcasurcments

Finrncirl lnstrumeots by crtegory

FinrncirlAssets

Trade Receivables

Other Non-Cunent Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Totrl Finrrci.l Assets

Finencirl Lirbilitics

Borrowings

Non-Current l,ease Liability

Other Cunent Financial Liabilitics

Trade Payables

Totrl Finircirl Lirbilities

3l Mlrch 2023

F\"TP[, Amortised Cost

3l iuarch 2022

F\-IPI- .\morliscd ('ost

425,202.953

70,393

l7l,162,006

s96,43s,351

PII P

|,241,342

4.400,089

65,069,514

285,890.528

366,601,471

8,232.089

3.315.253

80.969.840

286.106.840

31E,624,022

Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required

Level I 'fhe hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.'fhis
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual lunds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that arc not tradcd in an active market (like Mark to

Market derivative and Non-convertible Debenturcs) is detcrmined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use ofobservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrumenl are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Lcvel 3 lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrumcnl is includcd in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
. Credit risk
. Liquidig risk
o Market risk
o Currency risk

Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk managemcnt framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk managemcnt policies, under thc guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk managemcnt policies are established lo identi! and analyse the risks faced by it, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managemcnt
polici es and syslems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi tions and the Company's
activitics. Company, through its training and procedures aims to mai
construclive control environment in which all cmployecs understand their and

.t-
PHILIPPINES

,

..I (.)

504,944.939

70,393

64,4't3,398

569,4Et,729

disciplined and

I

U \ai



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to thc Financial Statcmcnts for the year endcd 3l March 2023

Company's Audit committec ovcrsces how managemcnt monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and proccdures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to thc risks faced by thc Company. Thc audit committce is assisted in its
oversight role by intemal audil. Internal audit underlakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management confols and proccdurcs, the results of which are reportcd to the audit commillee.

i. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. lhe maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the
carrying amount ofthese financial instrumenls. Cuslomers are subject to stringent financial, credit
and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

(larrl ing amount

fl Mrrch 202J

Weighted rverrgc loss rrte

Not due

Past due upto 180 days

456,71 1,295

48,233,644

00/o

oo/o

501,9{{,939

Cerr!'ing amounl

3l March 2022

Weighted rrerrgc loss rete

0./.

0%

Loss sllowrnce

Not due

Past due upto 180 days

43,590,386

38r,612,567

t25,202,951

a) Trade receivablcs
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established

policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables,

which are non-interesl bearing, are mainly from stockiss, distributors and customers and are

generally on 90 days credit term. Oulslanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed

both economically and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed al each reporting date on an individual basis for major

clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups

and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is thc carrying value of each class of
financial assets. Thc group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the

concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers arc located in

several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markcts.

Sales to certain jurisdictions are either based on advance payments or restricted to certain

tt
PH\L\PP\NES a

4ts

V

0-
4-

PH

Impairment:

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss
for trade receivables: PHP

M. NO.
107574

limits to contain exposures Io credit risk.



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statcmcnts for thc ycar cnded 3l March 2023

Expectcd crcdit loss asscssment

The Group allocates each exposurc to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is

determined to bc prediclive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press

information ctc.) and applying experienced credit judgement.

Exposures to cuslomers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the

Group to determine incuned and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of
trade receivablcs do not reflect any significant credit losscs. Given that the macroeconomic

indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the

Group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. The trend of the bad

debs is negligiblc.

PHP

Gross Carrying amount

Average Expected loss rate

Carrying amount ofkade receivables (net ofimpairment)

3l Mrrch 2023

s04,944,939

0.0"/.

3l March 2022

425,202,953

0.0%

The movement in the allowance for impairment in resp€ct oftrade receivables during the year was as

follows: PHP

3l llrrch 2021 3l March 2022

Balance as at the bcginning ofthe ycar

lmpairment loss recognised (net)

Amounts written off
Balance as at tle year end

b) Financial instruments
Company limits its exposure Io credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by
mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published extemal credit
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its
exposure to various counterpartics.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its prcsent and future cash and
collateral obligations without incuning unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from bank at
an optimised cost. Working capital requiremenB are adequately addressed by intemally generatcd
funds. ltade receivables are kept within manageable levels.

ll.

'l'he company aims to maintain the lcvel of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial
liabilities over the next six months

Exposure to liquiditt risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities offinanc
The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated

I tM.O
ro?57'1 impact of nening agreements.

rP
datc.

m

excludc thc
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PHP

As at 3l March 2022 Carrying
Amount

Contractual Cash Flows

0-12 I-2 years 2-5
months yeals

285,890,528

Tolal Morc than 5
years

Trade payables

Other Financial
liabilities

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Total

285,890.528

1,848,332

I1,241.342

4,400,089

285,890,528

1,848,332

I1,241,342

4,400,089

1.848.332

I |,24t.342

4,400.089

303.380.291 303,380.29r 606,760.582 t5,641.43 t

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rdtes, interest rates
and equity prices - will affcct thc Company's income or thc value of its holdings of financial
instrumcnts. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising thc retum. Financial instruments
aflected by market risk include loans and bonowings, deposits, investments, and derivative
financial instruments.

Company's activities cxpose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange ralcs and intercst rates. Thc company uses derivativc financial
instruments such as foreign cxchange contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange

fluctuations All such transactions arc carried oul within the guidelines sel by the risk management
commitlee.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of
financial instruments in foreign currencies arc all constanl. 'l'he analysis excludes thc impact of
movements in market variables on thc carrying value of postcmploymcnt benefit obligations,
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The sensitivity of lhe relcvant income

statement item is the effecl of thc assumed changes in the respective market risks. l'his is based on

the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of3l March 2023 and3l March 2022.

Currency risk
The Company's foreign exchangc risk results primarily from movements of the Philippinc peso

against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assels and liabilities.

The Company's transactional culrency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100%

purchases from Holding Company in US dollar. ln addition, 32o/as al3l March 2023and 58%as at

tv,

3l March 2022of the Company's debt are denominated in US dollar. The Company ically
ls llar.

m
(r)

(L
Z.

I

a
V

As rt f,l luarch 202J Cxrrying
Amount

Contrrcturl Crsh Flows

0-12 l-2 yerrs 2-5
months yean

286,106,840

Totrl

286,106,840

I,194,607

E,232,089

3,315,253

More thrn 5

286, I 06,8,10

I,194,607

8,2.t2,089

JJr s,2s.3

I.l9l.(n)7

8,2J2,0E9

3,315,25.1

29E,E{8,789 298,848,789 597,697,578 I I,5,17,3.12

M, NO,
10?57 4

PH\L\PP\NES

reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical move, in

Y-

'frrde payables

Other I'inencirl
liabilities

Borronings

Leisc lirbilities

Totrl
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dcnominated timc deposits in times when the Philippinc peso is dcprcciating or decreases its IJS

dollar denominated time deposits in limes when thc Philippine peso is appreciating.

The following table analyses foreign cunency risk as of3l March 2021 and 3l March 2022: 
*n*

Prrticulers

Financial Assets

Trade Payables

Borrowings & Other Financial Liabilities

Nct Asscts / (Lirbiliti.s)

3l illarch 202J

(286,106.840)

(3.016,543)

(2E9,r23J82)

3l llrrrh 2022

(285.890.528)

(7,592.0r l)
(293,4E2,sJE)

l.or the year ended 3l March 2023 and 3l March 2022,every percentage point depreciation /
appreciation in the exchange rate bctween the PIIPand respective currencies has affected the
Company's incrcmental profit before taxas per below:

PHP
l'err

3l March 2023

3l March 2022

Chrngc in currtncy crchrnga f.te
+5% I (-5%l

+5% / (-syo)

Change in intercst ratc
t lTo / (_lo/o)

-t%

EII'ca oD profit bcforr trr
14,456,169 / ( t4,456.169)

14,67 4,127 / (t 4.67 4,t2',7)

Effcct on profit before tax
94.267 t(e4267)

r30 897 I 130.897

and

33. Note on foreign currcncy exposurcs on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign
currcn s that have not bccn miti b a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:

a)

Year
3l March 2023
31 March 2022 +l%o /

Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to pricc risk, as there are no equity investments

34. l)isclosure for opcrating leascs under Ind AS I l6 - ..Leases":

The Croup have takcn various premises under operating lease.
ranges from I I months to 5 years and arc renewable by mutua
Some ofthese lease agreements have price escalation clauses
these lease arrangemcnts and thcre are no sub leases. Thcrc are no continScnt

b)

tcrms:
by

as

{
z
m

c

3l March
2023

289.123,382

J I March
2022

293,482,538

Forcign Currcncy
3l March 3l March

2023 2022

PIIP
I'a rticulars

I'a le
USD

Amount 5,363,786 4,239,170

Forcign
C u rrcncy

It. NO.
t07574

PHILIPPINES

iscount rate to a porlfolio of leases with rcasonably similar characteri stics.

O)

ingle

Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial inslruments arc subjecl to fair value interest rate
risk. The following table demonstratcs the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change
in interest ratcs, with all other variable held constant, of the Company's profit before income
tax. The estimates are based on the outstanding interest-bearing liabilities of the Company
with floating interest rate as at 3 I March 2023 and 3l March 2022.

PIIP

I
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Right-of-use assets

Crrrying.mounts

Gross

Net

3l M.rch 202J

10,?45,558

6,40r J02

f,l Mrrch 2022

7,535;t3'l

4,2',|',t,545

Brcakdown of lcase cxpcnscs

Shorl-term lease expense

Low value lcase exp€nse

Totrl lerse expense

3l March 2023

833.206

f,l M|rch 2022

2.01t.602

811.206 2,071,602

Cash outflow on leases

(Repayment) / Addition oflease liabilities

Totrl cash outflow on lcescs

ll }fur.h 2023

( 1,0E4,E36)

(1,0E r,836)

f,l Mxrch 2022

3.687.932

3.687.932

Maturity analysis

l,ess than I year Over I yerrs

3l March 2023

[,casc liabilities

3l Mrrch 2022

Lease liabilities

3.3 t5.253 4.400.089

3.315,253 4.400.089

35. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company

HPh
,o

(L ma

V)

!

Jl llarch 202J ll \larch 2022

Cost

Opening Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closirg Brhnce

Accumuhted deprccirtior rnd imprirment

Opening Balance

Depreciation

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals of assets

Closing Beleocc

7,535,73't

3,209,821

2,'162,968

4,772,169

t0,7{5,558 7,5J5,7J7

3,258,t92

r.086,064

2.172.128

t.086.064

{,1{t,256 1,2s8,192

t, Mr.
t01tr1

P$\t\PP\NES

I
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36. Related party tlisclosurc as requircd by Ind AS 24 arc given bclow:

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia (llolding Company)

Category Il - Directors, Key Management Personnel & thcir Rclatives:

Sam Gioskos Director (APPI)

& Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Followin transactions wcrc carried out with rclated rlies: PHP
Jl March 2023 3l March 2022Sr. No. Particulars

l. Purchasc of Coods:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia

2. Key Management Compensation:
Short Tcrm Employee B€nefits
Sam Gioskos

3. Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma
Ltd., India

Category

I

II

I

16,090,000

250,000,000

J I March 202J
278 600

t,074,992,267 944,451,37s

Amount outstandi as on Jl March 2022

37. Ilcmuncration to Auditors:
Particulars
Audit liees

38.

C PIIP

PIIP
3l March 2022

275.000

fcir holding bcnami

Additional disclosurcs requircd by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013:

A. Relationship with struck off company

The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act,1956.

B. Undisclosed income

l'here is no income surrendcred or disclosed as income during the cunent or previous year in the
tax assessmcnts under the Income'l-ax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
accounl.

C. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks

The borrowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which
such loans were taken.

D. Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against
property under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 198

t
lt

Sr. No, Particulars
l. Trade Payable:

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India

Category 31 March 2023 3l March 2022

286,106,840 285,890,528
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts for thc vear cndcd 3l March 2023

E. Wilful defaulter

The Group has nol been dcclarcd willul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govemment or any govemment authority.

F, Compliance with number of layers of companics

The Group has complicd with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) ofarrangements

The Group has not enlered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on
currcnt or previous financial year.

H. Details ofcrypto currency or virtual currcncy

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the cunenl or
previous ycar.

L Utilisation of borrowed funds and sharc premium

i. 1'he Group has not advanced or loaned or invcsted funds to any other person(s) or cntity(ies),

including foreign cntities (lntcrmediaries) with thc understanding that the lntermediary shall:

a. dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in othcr persons or entities idcntified in any manner

whatsoevcr by or on bchalf ofthc Group (Ultimate Bencficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whelher recorded in writing or otherwise) that

the Group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other pcrsons or cntities identified in any manner

whatsoevcr by or on bchalfofthe Funding Party (Ultimate Bencficiaries) or

b. (b) providc any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimale Beneficiaries.

ll

Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever nccessary, to confirm lo current

period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule ltl to the

Companies Act,20l3 effectivc from 0l April 2022.

40. Thc Company has one scgmcnt ofactivily namcly "l'harmaccuticals".

ln tcrms of our report attached

39.

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chaftercd Accountants
(ICAI FRN: \26t1

t [,l NO.
101F -1

For and on behalf of Board of Directorsof
Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc,

cshSrr a I Modi
I)artner

Murnbai. 24th April,2023
UDIN NO: 231075748GTKDT5077
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Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2022 to 31st December 2022. The
company follows the period lst April 2022 to 3lst March 2023. ln order to consolidate the
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. With that of the company, we have been
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. for the period lst April 2022 to 31st March 2023 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone lnd AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at

3lst March 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the
sigrificant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
standalone Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies
followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared

solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statements.

ln our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2023, and

profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that daie.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance withthe Code of Ethics

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

M. NO,
10t571
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.



Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit ofthe financial statements ofthe current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe
Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting ffauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a true and fair view and are liee
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing rhe financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material il individually or in the aggegate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(uj W. i u* sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledgi and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit'

M. NO,
1075t 1



(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,20l4.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3lst March,
2023 fiom being appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 (2) ofthe Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repon in

"Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable lau' or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's umber: 112617W

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: I 07574

Mumbai
Date:24th April2023
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PFTARMA
NIGERIA LTD.("the Company") as of 3lst March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statemenls ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finsncial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding

of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

** M, NO,
4107!t/



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 3lst March 2023, based on the intemal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the lnstitute ofChartered Accountants of India.

/or G.R.Modi& Co
Charlered Accountants
Firm's regi er: ll26l7WS

CA Swapnil Modi
Parlner
Membership number: 10757 4

Mumbai
Date:24h April,2023

UDIN No: 231075748GTKDV3958
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Balancc Sheet
as al 3l Morch 2023

(Currency: NGN)

\on-currenl asscts

Propcrty, plant and equipmcnt

Righl to use assets

CurEnt assats

Financial assets

Invcstments

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current asseb

llquity rnd Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital

Other Equity

3l \Iarch 2021 .ll \larch 2022

\\

1

7

134,122

3.892,195

2,602.778

2.7 43,625
'l'otel non-currenl assets

'l ot!l current assels

Tot|lequit)

'f otal current liahilitics

4.026.918 5.346.403

8

9

3.283.826 5,255,9t6
2,400.000

3.283.826 7.655.916

Totalasscls 7,J 10,7{J r J,002,.1l9

l0
ll

60,000,000
(79.928.400)

60,000.000
(1 4.997 .532)

( 19.928,400) (14.997,532)

Lirbilities
Nor current lirbilities

Lease liability

( urrcnt liabilitics
Other current liabilitics

t2

t3

4.t76,340 2.932.101

23.062.803 25,067.750

23.062.803 25.067-150

Totrl f, quity rnd Lirbilitics

Signilicant accounting policies

The notcs referred to above form an integnl part ofthe consolidated ltnancial statements

As per our report of even date attached

In terms ofour report rtteched

t'or G. R. llodi& Co.

Chartered Accountents
I('AI IJRN :

:lpn il llodi
Panncr

Nlumbai,24 Apr,2023

t I)l\ N0. r 2310757{BGTKD\'3958

7,J10,7{J 1J,002,Jr 9

['or and on behalfofBoerd ofDirecloni
ofAjrnte Pharma Nigeria l,td.

Gaur.ng Shsh

Dircctor
Mumbri,24 Apr,2023

u. xo.
't0tgt1 RC:1064785
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statcmcnl ofProfit and Loss Account
/br the year ended 3l Morch 2023

(C-urrency: NGN)

Income

Revenue ftom op€rations

Othcr income

Totrl income

Exptnscs

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of fi nished goodVwork-in-progresVstock-in-trade

Employee benefi ts expenses

Finance costs

Dep.eciation & amortisatio[ expense

Other expenses

Tot.lexpeN.s
Profit beforc trr

Tax expense

Current tax

Deffered tax

Profit for thc y.rr

t)arning Per EquiS Sh.re (Brsic & Diluted) (t ace Yalue \\ U-) (ln lI\.)

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notes referred to above lorm an integral part ofthe consolidated llnancial statements

As per our report ofeven date attached

In tcrms ofour report att!ched
I,'or (1. R. Nlodi & Co.
( hrrtcred Accoun

(I('AI I:RN

S*apnilModi
Pa(ncr
]lumbai,2.1Apr, 2021

t l)l\ \().:2310757{R(;1 KDVJ958

Nole
-ll \rsrch 202-3

\\
3l March 2022

NN

l4
l5
l6
l7

517,538

5,196, t88
(?82,E58)

2,823,746

699,464

4,521 ;198.83
2,710,600

{,930,E67 10.755.609

({,910,E67) (10,7ss,609)

1.067.968

(J,930,867) ( l1,82t,57?)

(0.08) (0.20)

For and on bchalfoflloard ofDireclors
of.\ianl, Pharma \igcria I ld.

Gaurang Shah

Director

Mumbai, 24 Apr, 202J

M. NO,
107514 RC:1064785
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of cashflow
/br the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: NGN)

3l March 2023 f,l March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before ta\
Adjustment for

Dcpreciation & amortisation cxpense

Interest expense

Umcalised forcigr exchange differencc

(4.930.867) (10,755,609)

5.t96,t88
517,538

4.521.799
699.464

Operating profit before working cspitrl chrnges
Charges in working capital

Decreas€ / (increase) in trade receivable
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets

Decrease / (increas€) in inventories
lncrease / (decrease) in other cunent liabilities
lncrease / (decrease) in trade payables

782.8s8

2,400,000

(2.004,947\

(5,5J1,JJ7)

(r 50,000)

4,145,000

Cash gencr.tcd from operations
Nct income tax paid

I,t71,9tt (47r,J79)
( t.067.968)

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets-including intangible assets & crvip

Capital expenditurc on right to use ass€t

I,177,91I

(1.876.702)

(1,539,J{7)

(2.176.020)

C

Proceeds from sale offixcd assets

Nct cash uscd in investing activities

Cash flow from fina[cing activities
lnterest paid

(J,E76,702)

(5 1 7.518 )

1.214.219

(2,776,0701

(699,464\
425.484Repal mcnt ol' lcase liability (including intcrcst thereon)

Nct cash uscd in Iinancing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents as at thc beginning ofthe year

726,101

( 1,972,090)

5.255.915

(271,980)

(J.589,1r6)

9.845.262
5,255,915Cash and cash equivalents as at the end ofthc ycar J,283 ,826

Figures in brackes indicates outflow.
Note :

L The above Cash Flow Statement has becn prepared under'lndirect Method'as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS - 7)

"Statement of Cash Flow" under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, currcnt accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholn-term balances (with an

original maturity ofttree months or less from the date of acquisition).

Signifi cant accounting policies

The notes refencd to above form an integral part ofthe consolidated financial statements

As per our report ofeven date attached

In terms of our report attachcd
l'or G. R. Modi & Co. Ior and on b€halfofBoard ofDirectors of
(lhartered Acc Ajanta Pharma N ia l,td.
(l(.\I

Swapnil Modi
Partncr
Mumbai, 24 Apr,2023

M. Lo.
1o'Jt4

RC:1064785
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Net cash flortr generated from operating activities

Gaurang Shah
Dircctor

Mumboi, 24 Apr,2023



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity
for tlrc year ended 3l March 2023

(Currcncy: NGN)

A. Equity Shrre Crpitxl NCN
Balencr As {l Chf,nges in ('hanges in Chenges in
0l April 2022 Equity Shrre equity share equity share

Capital due crpitsl during cspitf,l during
to prior (hc ycrr thc )ear
pcriod

B{knce as at
3l ill erch
2023

Authorised:
lssued:
Subscrib.d & Prid upr

60,000,000
60,000.000
60,000.000

60.000,000
60.000.000
60.000.000

60,000.000
60,000.000
60.000.000

B. Olher l:quitr,
Prrticnlars ( ApilflI

Rcdrnlptir)n
Rescnc

Srcurilirs
I'rcmium

(;cnrr*l
Rrs( rrr

Shere Brsed
Pryment
Reserve

R(t$ined
Esrnings

Foreign
Currency

-I ranslation
Res€rvc

()ther il.m\ ol oth.r
comprchrnsirc

inr(,m(

'l(llxl
Controlling

Interests

Ii)lAI Equil!

As rl I April 2021
Profit for the p€riod
Othercomprehensive income

\9.616,9161 (53,496,9E0)
(l1.823,s77)

(63,t73,955)
(l1,82.1.577)

'[olal compr€hensive income
Transfer to Retained Ilarnings
Dividend Paid

At 3l iurrch 2022 - - (9.676.9161

(l1,t23,577)

(65.J20.557)

(t I,1t23,577)

(7.1,997,SJ2)

{l1,823,577)

(7.t.997,5t2)

Profit for lhe period (4.930.867) (,r,930,867) (.r,930.t67)
(Xhcr

Total comprehensivc income

Transfer to Retained lramings
Dividend Paid

(4.930.E67) (1,9J0.r{67) (.1.930,86?)

,tl3l Nlrrrh 2023 - - 19,676'9761 (70,2s1.{2{) (79.928,{00) (79.928,{00)

S.c rccompsnying notes forming psrt ofthe finrncirl slrtcmcnts

ln trrms ofour reporl allrched
lor (;, R. Nlodi & (t,.
( hnrl( rr rl ,\
(ICAI FRN

apnil Modi
I'urtncr

M. NO.
10767a

I.-or':rnd on hohalfof llorrd 0f Dirrctors ol
Aiants Phrrms Nigerie Ltd

a (Ni

rRC:106478.s

IIumbri,24 Apr,202J
UDIN NO. : 231075748CTKDV3958

Csurang Sheh
Director

(63.173.955)
(r 1.E2J,577)



Notes to thc Financial Statcmcnts as on 31 March 2023

l. Corporatelnformation

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Lld. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia. The address of its registered office is
locatcd at Block 6, tlouse 6b, Howson Wright Estate, Orcgun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and rclated activities.

The Financial Statement for the year ended 3l March 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at it's meeting held on 24
April2023.

2. Basis of preparation

The Financial Statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance

with the recognition & measurcmcnt principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards

(hereinafter refened to as the 'lnd AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companics (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions ol the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis,

except otherwisc stated.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:

Functional currency ofthe Company is Nigerian Naira (NGN).

4. Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

crores,

5. Current / non-current classification:

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intendcd to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyclc, or

Held primarily for thc purposc oftrading, or

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A liability is current whcn it is:

o Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading, or
. Due to be settled within nvclve months after the rcporting period, or

M. NO.
107glt RC:1064785
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notcs to the Financial Statcmcnts as on 3l March 2023

Thcre is no uncondilional right to dcfer thc scttlemenl of the liability for at least twelve months

aftcr the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option ofthe counterparty, result

in its settlement by the issue ol'cquity instruments do not affcct its classification.

All other liabilities are treated as Non-Cunent.

Opersting Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation

in cash or cash equivalenls.

Based on the naturc of products / activities ofthc company and the normal time between acquisition

of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating

cycle as l2 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-

current.

6. Significant Accounting Policies

6.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets canying amounl or rccognised as a scparate asset as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic bcncfits associaled with the item will flow to the company and the
cost ofthe item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on lhe straighl-line method to writc off the cost of assets, to their residual
values over their estimated useful lifc as follows:

Particulars
Motor Vehicles

The assel's residual values and uselul lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an assel is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is writlen down immediately to its recoverablc amounl. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are dclermined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the statement ofprofit or loss.

6.2 l'inancial I nstruments

A financial instrument is any contracl thal gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets

Classification

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measurcd at amortised cost. fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model
for managing the financial assets and lhe contractual cash flows characteristics ofthe financial asset.

Initial rccognition and mcasurcmcnt

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs tha

AII financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, cls not

lr t{o.

Uscful Lifc
4 years
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Subscquent measuremcnt

For the purpose ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
. Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI)
. Financial asse6 at amortised cost
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measurcd at amortised cost (nct of any writc down for impairment, if any)

Financial assels are measured al amortised cost when asset is held within a busincss model, whose
objective is to hold assels for collccting conlraclual cash flows and contractual lerms of the asset

give rise on specified datcs to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intcrest. Such
financial assets are subsequcntly measurcd at amortised cost using the effective intercst rate (ElR)
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairmcnt are recognised in the Statement
ofprofit and loss.

Financial Assets measurcd at Fair Value through Other Comprchensive Income ('FVTOCI")

Financial assets under lhis category are mcasured initially as well as at cach reporting date at fair
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objcctive is to hold assets flor both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair valuc movements are rccognized

in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets under this catcgory are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value with all changes rccognised in profit or loss.

Invcstment in Equity Instruments

Equity inslruments which arc hcld for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity

instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,

are recognised in the olher comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other

comprehcnsive income to profit or loss.

I nYcstmcnl in l)cbt Instrumcnts

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cosl or at FVTOCL Any debt instrument, which does

not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortizcd cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments includcd within the FVTPL category are mcasured at fair value with all changes

recognised in the Statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from lhe asset have

expired or Company has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assels that are debt instruments
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Financial Liabilities

Classification

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subscquently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction cosls.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bonowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subscquent Mcasuremcnt

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for hading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Ilffective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as wcll as through IilR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortisation is includcd as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation undcr the liability is discharged or
cancclled or expires. When an existing financial liability is rcplaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or thc tcrms of an cxisting liability are substantially modificd, such
an exchange or modification is trcatcd as the dcrecognition of the original liability and thc
recognition of a new liability. The dilference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in thc
Statemcnt of Profit and Loss.

l)erivativc Financial Instrumcnl

Irinished products including traded goods are valued at lower ofcost and net realisable value. Cost is
anived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories has been computed to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Slow and non-moving material, prod ucts nearing ided for

ta r
5
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valued aI net realisable value.
expiry, defective inventory

l)erccognition of Financial Liabilitics

'fhc Company uses derivative financial instrumens, such as forward cunency contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative conlract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial asscts when thc fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

6.3 lnventories

Net realisable value is the estimated selling pricc in the ordinary course of business, less the
cstimated costs ofcompletion and selling expenses necessaqr_to make the sale.
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6.1 Cash and Cash Equivalcnts

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part ofthe company's cash management.

6.6 Forcign Currency Transactions

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign cunencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate

prevailing on the date ofthc transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign cunencies aI the year-cnd are re-measured at the exchange

rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monctary foreign currency items are canied at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on scttlement or on restatement is

recognised in the Stalemcnt of Profit and Loss.

6.7 RevenucRecognition

Revenue recognition under Ind AS I l5 (applicable from I April 2018)

Under lnd AS ll5, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was

satisfied, i.e. when ,control' ol lhc goods underlying the particular performance obligation were

transfened to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step MethodoloSr which is as

follows:

Step I : Identifi the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identiry the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Dctermine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performancc obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue whcn (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

M. NO.
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Sale ofGoods

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date ofbalance sheet.

6.5 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions ofa non-cash nature, any defenals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash

receipts or payments and ilcm of income or expenses associaled with investing or financing cash

flows. The cash flow from operating, invesling and financing activities of the Company are

segregated.
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'fhe group applied lnd AS I l5 using the modified rctrospective approach.

Rcvenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is

specified in a contract with customer. Revenuc are net of cstimated retums and taxes collected from

customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transfened to the

customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control ofgoods is transfened upon

the shipment ofthe goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer.

'fhc transaction price is documented on the salcs invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed

credit terms with customer.

'fhe consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Salcs retum is variable consideration that is recogniscd and rccorded based on historical expericnce,

markct conditions and provided for in the year of salc as reduction from revenue. The methodology

and assumptions used to estimate relums arc monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Interesl income

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established.

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

6.8 Employec Benefits

Short-term Bcnefits - 'fhe Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an
cxpense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short{erm benefits given
by thc Company to its employees includc salarics and wages and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employmcnt Benefits - No provision has bccn made in respect of employee retirement
bcnefits as employees are not cligible lor such bcncfits. Besides the company does not have any
pcnsion schcme or any contracted agreemcnt binding itscllto the employees.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

6.9 liorrowing Costs

llonowing costs comprise of other bank charges. tlonowing.costs directly attribulable Io the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that n&essarily tdkes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitaliz&.as pan oflhe cost of the asset. All other
horrowing costs are expensed in the period in which tlley
and other costs thal an entity incurs in connection with tle

occur. Borrowing costs consist
botrowing of iunds. Tran
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d

*

RC:1064785

charged to statement ofprofit and loss as financial expcnses over the term ofbo

of

Export benefis available under prevalent schcmes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the
goods are exported and / or services are rendercd only when there reasonable assurance that lhe
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received.
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6.10 Lcase

The company's leasc assct class primarily consists of leascs lor land and buildings. Thc Company
assesses whether a contract conlains a lease, at inccplion of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if thc contract convcys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a conlract convcys lhe right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (l) the contract involves the use ofan identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of thc economic bencfiIs from use of the assct through
the period ofthe leasc and (3) the Company has the right lo direct the use ofthe asset.

At the date of commenccment of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (.'ROU")
and a corresponding leasc liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases

with a term of twelve monlhs or less (short{erm leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the |ease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term ofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include thc options to extcnd or lerminate the lease before the end ofthe
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes thcse options when it is reasonably certain that

they will be exercised.

The righlof-use assets are initially rccognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the

lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incenlives. They are subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated deprecialion and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assels are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts

may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tesling, the recoverable amount (i.e' the

higher of thc fair value less cost 10 sell and the valuc-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other

assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to

which the asset belongs.

The lease liabilily is initially measurcd at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease

payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease

liabilities are remeasured with a conesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the

Company changes its assessment ifwhether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever ttre

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the

contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term ofthe relevant

lease.

Transition
Effective I April, 2019, the ComPanY adopled Ind AS I l6 "Leases" and applicd the standard Io all

Iease contracts existing on I April, 2019 using the modi ficd rctrospective method and has taken thc

cumulative adjustment to retained camings, on lhe date of initial applicalion. Consequently, the
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generally accepted interest rate and the right ofuse asset at its carrying amount as ifthe standard had

been applied sincc the commencement datc of the lease, bul discounted at the generally accepted

interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 3l March,
2019 have not been retrospcctively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the

accounting policies included as part ofour Annual Report for year ended 3l March, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of
NGN 6,763,975 and a lease liability of NGN 7,270,613. The cumulative effect of applying the

standard, amounting to NGN 506,639 was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect of
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before ta,r, profit for the period and eamings per share. Ind
AS ll6 will result in an incrcase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash

outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary ofpractical expedients elccted on initial application:

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less

than l2 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial dircct cosls from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application.

d. Applied the practical expedienl to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS ll6 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
under Ind AS 17.

a

Defened income lax assets and liabilities are Jecognized, for all tcmpo
between the assets and liabilities and their canying amounts in

es anslng
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The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at I April, 2019 is 9%.

6.ll Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit athibutable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
dcriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted lor the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of ihe period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

6.12 lncome Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defened income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statemenl ofprofit and loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in whic'h case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income. Current income tax for cunent and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respectivi Country,s tax rates
and ta\ Iaws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

M. t{O.
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Defened tax assets are reviewed at each rcporling date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to setlle on a nct basis, to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rales and tax
laws that have been enactcd or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in rvhich those tcmporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled. 'l'he effect ofchangcs in tax rates on dcferred income tax assets and liabilitics is
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extenl that it is probable that future
ta,xable profit will be available against which the deductiblc temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized. The Group offsets currenl tax assets and currcnt tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to sel off lhe rccogniz-ed amounls and where it intends either to senle on a nel

basis, or to realize thc asset and settle the Iiabilily simultaneously.

6.13 Dividends to Sharcholders

6.14 Provisions, Contingcnt Liabilities, Continge nt Assets and Commilments

General
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recogniz-ed whcn thc Company has a present obligation (legal

or constructive) as a result of a past cvenl and it is probablc that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to thc Financial Statcments as on Jl March 2023

. A present obligation

. A possible obligatio

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its

present value and are determincd based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the

balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current

best estimales.

Ifthere is any expectation that some or all ofthe provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is

recognised as a ieparate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.'fhe expense

relat-ing to a proviiion is presenled in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain

reimbursement.

lfthe effect ofthe limc value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a cunent pre-lax

rate that reflects, whcn appropriate, the risk specific to thc liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost'

Contingcnt liability is disclosed in the case of:
o A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probablc that an outflow ofresources

will be required to seftle the obligation;
arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

n arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is

(Ni
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Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on

approval by Board ofDirectors. Dividcnd payable is recognised directly in equity.
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets

are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statcments.

Commitments include thc amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for

completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lcasc.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent asscts and commitments are reviewed at each balance

sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) arc provided for those operating lcase arrangements where the

Company has a binding obligation at the end of lhe lease period to restore the leased premises in a

condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to

settle the obligation using discounled cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that

particular asset. The cash flows arc discounted al a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific

to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income

statement as a finance cost. The cslimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually

and adjusted as appropriate. Changcs in estimated fulure costs or in the discount rate applied are

added to or deductcd from the cost ofthe asset.

6.15 Fair valuc measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, dcrivalives at fair value at each balance sheet

date in accordance with lnd AS I I3.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement offinancial position:
. Derivative financial instruments are measured al fair value received from Bank.
. Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option PIan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report.

Fair value is the price lhat would be received to sell an asset or settlc a liability in an ordinary
transaction behyeen market participants at the measurement date.

'l'he fair valuc of an assct or a liability is measured using thc assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interesl.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generatc economic benefits by using the asscl in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

1'he Company uses valuation tcchniqucs that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the usc of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All asscts and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disc.losqd in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hicrarchy. dcscribcd as lollbws, bmed on the lowest level inpul that
is significant to the fair value mcasurcmcnt as a wholc: ' t,

o Level I - Quoted (unadjustcd) market priccs in actiic markets ftr identical assets or liabilities.
o Lcvel 2 Valuation techniqucs for which the lou/tsl lcvel input that is si
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Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

Property, PIant and cquipment
Determination of the eslimated useful lile of tangible assets and the assessment as to which

components ofthc cost may bc capitalized. Useful life oftangible assets is based on the lifc
of useful lives/rates prescribcd by the GAAPs of the respcctive countries. Assumptions also

need to be made, whcn the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and

which components ofthc cost ofthe asset may be capitalised.

For assets and liabilities that arc recogniscd in the financial statemcnts on a recuning basis, the
Company determines whcther transfcrs have occurred betwcen levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature. charactcristics and risks ofthe asset or liabilitv and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explaincd above.

6.17

Ministry of Corporale Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from I April 2022.

Critical accounting judgemcnts, cstimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomcs that require a material
adjuslmenl Io the carrying amount ofthe asscts or liabililies in future pcriods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At thc inception or on reassessment ofan arrangement lhat contains a lease,

Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into
those for the lease and those for lhe other elements on the basis oftheir relative fair values.

The Company has dctermincd, based on an evalualion of the terms and conditions of the

arrangements that such contracts are in the nature ofoperating leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vcndors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods

and rendering of services. 'l'he consideration paid is/may be determincd independent of the

value of supplies reccived and services availed. Accordingly, the supplics and services are

accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies

with finite life under thc contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have

been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the

Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current

treatment represents the substance ofthe arrangement.

(c)

M. Xo.
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(d) Intangible Asscts
Intemal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets.

Management believcs that assigned useful livcs are reasonable.

(c) Recognition and measurement ofdefined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial

assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation

and vesled future bcnefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with
reference to market yields at the end of the rcporting pcriod on the govemment bonds. The

period to maturity of the underlying bonds conespond to thc probable maturity of the post-

employment benefi t obligations.

(f) Recognition of defcrrcd tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be

available while recognising deferred tax assels.

Management judgmcnt is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and

defened tax assets and liabilities. 'l'he Company reviews at each balance sheet date thc

carrying amount of defened tax assets. The factors used in cstimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statemenls.

Uncertainties exisl with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the

amounl and timing of future taxable income. Given the widc range of intemational business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,

differences arising between lhe actual results and lhe assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate futurc adjustmcnts to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences ofaudits by the tax aulhorities ofthe respeclive countries in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issucs depending on lhc conditions prevailing in the respective country.

Defened lax assels are recognised for all unuscd tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of defcrred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

(g) Recognition and measuremcnt ofother provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary
from lhe figure included in other provisions.

(h) Contingencies
Management j of resources, if
in respect of

u. rio.
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Ajanta Pharma Nigcria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statcmcnts as on 3l March 2023

(D Allowance for uncollectcd accounts reccivable and advances
Trade reccivables do nol carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimaled irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management seems thcm not collectible. Impairment is made on the
expected crcdit losses, which arc thc present valuc of the cash shortfall over the expectcd
lifc of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk ofdefault
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecling the inputs lo
the impairment calculation are based on past hislory, existing market condition as well as

forward looking estimales al lhe end ofeach reporting period.

(i) Insurancc claims
Insurance claims are recognised whcn the Company has reasonable certainty ofrecovery.

(k) Impairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unil ('CGU')
exceeds ils rccovcrablc amount. Rccoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs

to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in
rcspect of highly uncerrain matters, including managemenl's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discounl rates to reflect the risks

involved.

a(No

r
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Ajanta Phanna Nigeria Ltd.

Notes to the !inrncisl Strtements (Continued)
as ut 3l l4arch 2023

(Curcncy:NGN)

\:
(;ro33 BlNk(Cdr Or Dem.d C6t) A.cumuhr.d ttrrr.(i iod/Amorri$tion

0l ,{Dril2022 Jl \lr.h 2021 0l lpril2022 Jl tlrrch 202J Jl llrr.h I02J Jl tl.r 2012

I0.000.000 10.000,000 7.391,222 2.46E,056 9,E65.27E 114,122 2,6A2,718
'l olrl Trnsible A3sers t0.000.000 1.391,222 2.168,056 9.'t6S,278 131,722 2,602,174

!0.000.000 t0,000,000 4,a97,221 2.500,000 7.391.222 2.602,178 5.102.778

(u)
1,876.702 11.416.696 6.796.369 2-128,112 9.524.501 :r.E92,195 2,743.625

l-or.l !nrrngihle Asscts J,ri76,702 tJ,{6.696 2.72E,1J2 9,52{.50t 2,7lt,675
6.76t,975 2,176,O20 q,519.994 4.771,574 2,021.799 2.713.625 1.989.401

'ti,lll fnrd 
^seis 

(A) + (B) 5.J,16,r0]

M. NO.
107514

t
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z\janta Pharma Nigcria I-td.

Notes to the l-inancial Statements (Coltinued)
as at 3l llotch 2023

(Currency:NGN)

ll Mrrch 2021

NN
Jl tlarch 2022

8 Ccsh ind crsh equivrlcnts
Crsh rnd Crsh f,quivrlents

Balance wlh Banks - ln Current Accounrs

9 Other Curr€rt A.rcts
Advances ro Suppliers

Advances rc Employees

1.281,826 5,255,9t6

3,281,826 5,255,9t6

2.400.000

2..100,000

l0 Equity Share Crpitsl

Ajanta Pharma Lrd.. India

(d) Shrres reservcd lor issric undcr options

II OTHER EQTIITY

General Reacrva

Balance al lhe beginningofthe year

Add Ta.sferred from Statement of Profit & Loss

f, rchrnge l'lucluation Rcserve

ll }Irrch 202.1

Shrres

3l Mrr.h 2023

NN
Aulhoris€d :

Ordinary Shares ofNN I each

(c ) Del.ils ofequily shcrcholdcrs holding morr thrn 59/.

Nrm€ of Shr,tholder

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

60,000,000

Issucd, Suhcribd & P.id up :

Ordinary Shsres ofNN I each fully paid up

(a) Reconciliation of number ofequity shares outitrnding rr th€ beginniog and al rhe €nd of lhe tter

60,000,000

Jl Uir.h 2023

Shrrcs

ll Nhrch 2023 3l }larch 2022

Shsres

.il lltarch 2022

\\
Number ofshares oulstandingas at th€ b€ginningofthe year

Add r Number ofshares allotted as fully paid-up during th€ year

Less: Numbcrofshares bought back durine th€ year

Numberofshar€s outstandingas at the end of the year

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

60,000,000

(b) Righls, prrf.rcnccs rnd rGlrictions rttrched to shrrcs
The company has issued only one class ofequity shares witb voling rights having a par value of NN I per share.

The company have not declared any dividend.
ln the evenr of lquidarion ofrhe company, the holders ofequity shares will be entilled lo rec€iv€ remaaning assets of the company. The distnbulion

will be in proponion to lhe numbers ofequity shares held by shaieholders.

60,000,000 60.000,000

3l Mrrrh 2023 3l Mrrrh 2023

Numbcrof
Sh.rcs

3l ]lrrch 2022

Shrrts

3l Mrmh 2022

T.lloldin8
60,000,000

Nrl

t00.00 60.000,000

\rl

(9.676,g',t6\

(9,676,916)

(70,2s l.{21)

(65.320,557)

(4,910,867)

(53,496,980)

(r r.82r,577)

100 00

Nil

(9,676.976)

(t).67 6,916)

lr NO.
10lgta RC:1064785
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(79,92t,100)

Surylus ill th. Strtemcnl ofProfil rnd lrss
Balance al $e beginning ofthe year

Profil for lhe y€ar

Less:Appropriatrons

-Transfened to Retained Eamings

Brhnc..l thc ycrr cnd

Torrl Orh.r f,qoity

ll Mrrch 2022

Numberof
Shrrrs

3l Mrrch 2022

(65,120,557)
(7.1,99?.5.12)



,Ajanta Pharma Nigcria Ltd.

Notcs to the Financial Statements (Continued)
0s at 3l March 202i

(Currency:NCN)

I2 I,EASf, LIABILIT'I'
l-case liahiLn

lJ Olher Currcnt Lirbililies
Olhers payables

14 Enpolyc. B.trcfil f,rpcB.s
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances

l5 linance Cost

On Lease Liabilitr

16 Dcprrcirtiotr
Deprecialion ofTangible Asse6 (Refer nole 7)

Depr€.iation of fught lo us€ Assets (Refer note 7)

l7 Othcr f,xpens€s

Travelling Expenses

Telephone, Telex & Poslage

RepaiB to Olhers

Insumnce

Exchange DifTerence (Net)

Miscellaneous Exp€nses

3l Mrrrh 2021 3l Mrrch 2022

NN

4.176.340

r,176,310

21.062,801

21,062,80J

517.518

5t7,518

5.196.188

25,067,750

25.067.750

2.82J,746

2.E2.),7t6

699,464

619,161

t,51,t,799

561,784

3 t,100
850,170

57,0t 8

(5,641,777\

6,852,105

2,7t0,600

2,468,0s6

2,728,t32

2,500,000

2,02t.799

179,000

5,000

(2.005.8t 8)

1,038.960

(782.8S8)

If, NO.
10f511
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for thc vear ended 3l March 2023

18. Capital Managemcnt

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capilal basc so as to maintain investor, credilor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of thc business. Management monitors the retum on
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity sharcholders. The Company'sobjectivc for capital
management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth
of the Company. The company determined the capital requirement based on annual operating plans
and long term and other strategic investment plans.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusled net debl' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purposc,
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments.
Adjusted equity comprises all components ofequity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below l.00and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 3 I March
2023 was as follows. NGN

19. l)arnings I'cr share (EPS):

'lhc numcrator and dcnominator used to calculalc Ilasic and l)iluted Earn Share:

20 Employec Benelits

As required by Ind AS 19 .Employee Benefits"the company offers its employees: Short-term

employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other allowances which are paid

immediately. The total consideration paid in 2021-22was NGN2,129,500 (Previous

YearNGN2,823,746).

Retirement plan - No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement beneltts as

employees ur" not 
"ligibl. 

for such bencfits. Bcsides the company does not have any pension scheme

P.rticulrrs

Debt

Lrss: Cash and Cash equivalens

Net Debt

Equity

Nct D.bt lo Equity rrtio

.ll }hrch 202.1 .ll March 2022

R

3,283,826

(3,283,826)

( 19,928,400)

N/A

5,255,916

(5,255,9r6)

(t4,991,532\

N/A,\/8

Prrticul.rs

Basic rnd Dilutcd Errnings Pcr Shrrc:

Profit attdbutable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (NGN)

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (NGN)

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing Diluted
EPS (NGN)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Sharcs oulstanding - for
Basic EPS
Add: Dilutive eflect of option outstanding- Number of Equity
Shares
Weighted Average Number ofEquity Shares for Diluted EPS

Face Value per Equity Share (NGN)

Brsic Errnings P€r Shrre (NGN)

Dilutcd E.rniDgs Pcr Shares (NGN)

B

C=A-B

D

E

F=D+E

(l1,823,577)(4.930.867)

3l March 202J 3l Mrrch 2022

(l1,823,577)

60,000,000

(4,930,867)

60,000,000

60.000.000

I

(0.20)

(0.20)

60,000,000

I

(0.08)

(0.08)

A/D

ctF

M. NO.
107tr4
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Fair valuc measurements N(; N

Fair value measurement oflease liabilities is not required.

Levcl I l'he hicrarchy in level I includes financial inslruments measured using quoted prices. This

includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to

Market derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which

maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entityspecific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in

levcl 2.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments:
. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk
o Currency risk

Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has ovcrall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of thc
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk managemenl policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set

appropriatc risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems arc rcviewed regularly to reflect changcs in market conditions and lhe Company's
activities. Company, through its training and proccdures aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructivc control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk managemenl policies and procedures, and revicws of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company ittee is assistcd in its
oversight role by intemal audit. lnternal audit un
management c

Financirl Instruments by categorY

l-inancirlAsscts

Cash and cash cquivalents

Totrl Finsncial Assets

3l Mrrch 2023

l-vTPl, Amortised Cost

3l llarch 2022

FVTPL Amortised Cost

3.283.826

.1,283,826

5,255,916

5,255,916

Financirl Lirbilities

Lease l,iability

Other Cunent Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

4.1?6.340

21.062.803

21,239,113

2,932,101

25-067.'150

33,25s,766

u. flo.
10f6ta

t

edurcs. the rcsults of mmittee.

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Noies to thc Financial Statemcnts for thc ycar cndcd 3l March 2023

21. Financial Instrumcnt - fair valucs and risk managcmcnt

Level 3 lf one or more of the significant inputs is nol based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

?

hoc reviews of risk



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statcments for the year ended 3l March 2023

i. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The tradc reccivables arise mainly from transactions with its
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on thcse transactions is equal to the
carrying amount ofthcse financial instrumenls. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit
and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that thc Company may not be able to mcct its present and future cash and
collateral obligations without incurring unacccptable losses. The Company's objcctive is to, at all
times maintain optimum lcvels of liquidity to meet ils cash and collateral requirements. 'lhe

Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate sources offinancing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at
an optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated

funds. Trade reccivables are kept within manageable levels.

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changcs in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity priccs - will alfect the Company's income or the valuc of its holdings of financial
instruments. Thc objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameterc, while optimising the retum. Financial instruments

affected by market risk includc loans and bonowings, deposits, investments, and derivative
financial instrumcnts. Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the
effects of changes in foreign cunency exchange rates and intcrcst rates. All transactions are carried
out within the guidelincs set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis hasbeen prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of
financial instruments in loreign currencies arc all constanl. The analysis excludes the impact of
movements in market variablcs on thc carrying value of postemployment bcnefit obligations,
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The scnsitivity of the rclcvant income

statemenl item is thc effect of thc assumed changcs in the respective market risks. This is based on

the financial assets and financial liabilities hcld as of3l March 2023 and3I March 2022.

iv. Currency risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Nigerian Naira

against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The

Company's transactional currcncy exposures arise from its inventories which is purchases from

Holding Company in US dollar. The Company regularly reviews the trend of the foreign exchange

rates. Company does not havc any assets / liabilily in USD.

22.

b) Price risk
Company does not havc any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.

Notc on foreign currcncy exposures on asscts and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchangc Contract. The company does not

have any asset / liability at the year ending on 31 March 2023 and 3l March 2022.

tt tr. tlo.
107rr
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a) Interest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no intercsl rate risk'
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notcs to the Financial Statcmcnts for thc vcar cndcd 3l March 2023

(Repayment)/ Addition of lease liabilities

'l otrl crsh outflow on lers€s

3l Mrrch 202.3

t.244.239

1.244.239

3l Mrrch 2022

425.484

425.484

Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS I 16- "Leases":

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and

ranges from I I monlhs to 5 years and are rcnewable by mutual consenl on mutually agreeable terms.

Some of lhese lease agreements havc price escalation clauses. 'l'hcre are no restrictions imposed by

these lease anangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single

discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar chamcteristics.

Rightofuse assets

Jl }larch 202.1 Jl llarch 2022

Cost

opening Balance

Additions

Dispoeals

Closing BrLrcc

Ac.umuha.d d.pr.ci.tion rnd imprirm.nt

Opening Balance

Depreciation

knpairment loss

Eliminated on disposals of assets

Closing Belence

9,539,994

3,816,702

6;163.9',15

2.176,020

I J,.l l(r.69(r 9,5J9,991

6;196,369

2;128,132

4.711.510

2.02t.799

9,521,501 6,796,369

C.rrying.mounts

Gross

Net

3l March 202.3

I J,,l16,696

3,892,19s

3l Mrrch 2022

9.539,994

2;t43,625

Cash outflow on leascs

Maturity analysis

Less thrn I tear Over I verrs

3l Mrrch 202f,

Leasc liabilities

3l March 2022

Lease liabilitics

4.176.340

2,932,t01

?*M. NO.
107571 C:1064785
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21.

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notcs to the Financial Statcments for the year cndcd 3l March 202J

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:

Thcre arc no contingcnt liabilitics and commitments by the Company.

Related party disclosurc as required by Ind AS 24 are given below:

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company)

B l'ollowin transactions wcrc carricd out with rclatcd rties:

25

N(;N

Am()unt outsta ndi as on J I March 2l)23

26. Remuncration to Auditors:
Particu lars
Audit Iiccs

)1

NGN

N(; N
.31 March 2023 3l March 2022

531 500

C

531 500

Additional disclosures rcquired by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013:

A. Relationship with struck off company

'l'he Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act, I956.

B. Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the

tax assessmcnts under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has nol been recorded in the books of
account.

C. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks

The bonowings obtained by The Group from banks have been.applied for the purposes for which

such loans were taken. t. . ,.
D, Details ofbenami propcrty hcld 

i
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Crotp for holding benami

property undcr the Benami Transactions (Prohibilion) Actl 1988 (45if.I988) and Rulcs madc

thereunder.

E. Wilful defaulte r

Thc Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

govemment or any govemment authority.

F. Compliancc with numbcr of laycrs of companics

t, 2013.Con:pa

Js r
s

&
(6

Psrticuhrs

Expense Reimbursement

Ajanta Pharma Ltd.. India

( alrgor'l

t5.201.000 13,191,815I

Jl }larch 202J 3l llrrch 2022Sr. No.

Prrticuhrs

Advance Pry.ble:

Ajaota Pharma Ltd.. India

(}tegorl- 3l \larch 202J Jl \larch 2022

2,155,052 4.160,000

Sr. No.

l.

RC:1064785
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notcs to thc Financial Statcmcnts for thc ycar cndcd 3l March 2023

G. Compliancewith approvcd scheme(s) ofarrangcments

1'he Group has not entercd into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on

cunent or previous financial year.

H. Details ofcrypto currency or virtual currcncy

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or
previous year.

I. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

i. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign cntities (lntermedi ies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invcst in other persons or entitics identified in any manner

whatsocver by or on behalfofthe Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, sccurity or the Iikc to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not received any lund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that

the Group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or thc like on bchatfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ll

Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule Ill to the
Companies Act,20l3 effective from 0l April 2022.

29. The Company has onc scgment ofactivity namely "Pharmaceuticals".

In tcrms of our rcporl attachcd

28.

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(rcAr

Pn illodi
Partncr

Mumbai, 24'h April, 2023

UDIN NO.: 23107574BGTKDV3958

For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors of
Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

au n g Shah
Director

t
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